

12/10/2015

Page 1

DETROIT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

EVENING COMMUNITY MEETING

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2015 6:30 PM

10500 LYNDON STREET

ADAM BUTZEL RECREATIONAL CENTER

DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48227

1 COMMISSIONERS:

2

3 GEORGE ANTHONY, Secretary

4 WILLIE BELL, Vice-Chairperson (Dist.4)

5 DERRICK SANDERS, Commissioner Appointed

6 ELIZABETH BROOKS, Commissioner Appointed

7 BISHOP EDGAR VANN, Commissioner (Dist. 2)

8 REGINALD CRAWFORD, Commissioner (Dist. 3)

9 RICARDO R. MOORE, Commissioner (Dist. 7)

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18 REPRESENTING THE CHIEF OF POLICE'S OFFICE:

19

20 ASSISTANT CHIEF JAMES E. WHITE

21

22

23

24

25

1 Detroit, Michigan  
2 Thursday, December 10, 2014  
3 About 6:32 p.m.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Good evening.  
5 I'd like to welcome you to the weekly meeting of  
6 the Board of Police Commissioners. I am the  
7 Vice-Chair Willie Bell from District 4.

8 Our Chair, Lisa Carter, could not  
9 attend tonight due to family business, so we want  
10 to lift her up tonight as we go forward.

11 I'm going to ask our own Bishop Edgar  
12 Vann to prayer.

13 (INVOCATION WAS GIVEN).

14 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Bishop  
15 Vann. At this time I'm going to ask starting  
16 with my left -- well, I'm going to start with my  
17 right since our Rev. Vann just prayed.

18 Would the commissioners introduce  
19 themselves please and we have a newly designated  
20 commissioner and he's going to introduce himself  
21 at this time.

22 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: My name is  
23 Commissioner Derrick Sanders.

24 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Commissioner  
25 Elizabeth Brooks.

1 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Good evening, my  
2 name is Commissioner Ricardo Moore and this is my  
3 host area. I'd just like to thank each and every  
4 one of you for coming out today representing the  
5 2nd Precinct, more specifically District 7; thank  
6 you.

7 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, my name is  
8 Reginald Crawford. I'm the commissioner for the  
9 3rd District, the east side of Detroit; thank  
10 you.

11 COMMISSIONER BISHOP VANN: My name is  
12 Edgar Vann, I'm the commissioner for the 2nd  
13 District in Northwest Detroit.

14 COMMISSIONER BELL: Mr. Anthony, our  
15 Board Secretary, do we have a quorum?

16 SECRETARY ANTHONY: You do have a  
17 quorum, Mr. Chair.

18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir. At  
19 this time I would ask you to introduce -- before  
20 I do that, I guess I'll introduce -- he needs no  
21 introduction to us, but to you we should be well  
22 aware Assistant Chief James White to my extreme  
23 left representing Chief Craig.

24 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: Good evening,  
25 everyone.

1                   COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you for your  
2 attendance. Did you want to introduce any other  
3 command officers? We've got quite a few officers  
4 in the house.

5                   ASST. CHIEF WHITE: Yes, I'll let them  
6 introduce themselves, start with Dep. Chief  
7 LeValley.

8                   (MEMBERS OF COMMAND STAFF INTRODUCED  
9 THEMSELVES).

10                  ASST. CHIEF WHITE: Okay, I think  
11 that's everybody now. I want to thank you all  
12 for being here. You'll be hearing from the  
13 Captain of the 2nd Precinct a little later with  
14 his presentation, Capt. Rochon.

15                  Also Officer Drury, an active member of  
16 the 11 Precinct lost his battle with cancer  
17 recently and funeral services were held today, so  
18 obviously the department is operating with a very  
19 heavy heart.

20                  Captain from Number 11 Leach, do you  
21 want to add anything to that? Okay, so --

22                  COMMISSIONER BELL: Let's have a moment  
23 of silence for this officer and his family.

24                  (MOMENT OF SILENCE).

25                  COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.

1 Mr. George Anthony, Board Secretary, would you  
2 introduce the staff, please?

3 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Thank you,  
4 Mr. Chair. For the record, George Anthony,  
5 Secretary to the Board. Before I introduce the  
6 staff, Mr. Chair, I just want to note the  
7 commissioners who are excused for the evening.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

9 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Willie  
10 Burton, Commissioner Eva Garza Dewaelsche,  
11 Commissioner Conrad Mallett, Jr, Commissioner  
12 Richard Shelby and I believe you've already  
13 mentioned our Chair, Lisa Carter.

14 Our staff members present include  
15 Ms. Pamela Davis-Drake who is our Chief  
16 Investigator from the Office of the Chief  
17 Investigator. Also here is our Supervising  
18 Investigator from that office Ansley Cromwell.

19 We also have Ms. Linda Bernard seated  
20 in front, she is our Secretary -- she is our  
21 attorney to the Board.

22 Mr. Robert Brown who is our  
23 administrative assistant seated next to me. Also  
24 Sgt. Alan Quinn who is recording our proceedings  
25 and Mr. Dale Rose from Hanson Court Reporting

1 Service.

2 That completes the introductions, sir.

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir. At  
4 this time I'd like to give thanks to the Butzel  
5 Center for accommodating us tonight and as always  
6 it's a blessing to be in their building. This is  
7 a great facility here. I was here during the  
8 summer when they had the field day activities,  
9 all the activities, and I got re-acquainted with  
10 all activities at Butzel, so very appreciative.

11 Anyone here from the staff want to come  
12 forward. If not, I would like to ask  
13 Commissioner Moore to introduce some of our  
14 officials that might be in attendance and others,  
15 we can have you stand up also.

16 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you,  
17 Mr. Chairman. Wayne County Commissioner Alicia  
18 Bell, would you please stand? From State  
19 Representative Coleman Young's, II's office,  
20 Kennus Johnson El. Senator, I'm sorry.

21 From city councilman George  
22 Cushingberry's office, Dr. Arthur Divers. And  
23 from Mayor Duggan's office District 7 manager Ray  
24 Solomon, II. Thank you all for attending.

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: Let's give District

1 Manager Ray Solomon a round of applause. He just  
2 recently got promoted. Thank you.

3 And thank all of you for your  
4 attendance and I really -- if this is your first  
5 meeting, could you just please stand up -- in  
6 terms of attending the Board of Police  
7 Commissioners, if this is your first meeting.

8 Give you a round of applause for coming  
9 out. Thank you, thank you, thank you. We have a  
10 heavy agenda this night as you can see by the  
11 room, so the Chair would entertain a motion to  
12 approve the agenda for tonight's meeting.

13 COMMISSIONER BISHOP VANN: So moved,  
14 Mr. Chair.

15 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Support.

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly  
17 moved and supported. Discussion? Those in  
18 favor?

19 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed?  
21 Motion carries. And next item of business would  
22 be approval of the minutes from Thursday,  
23 December 3, 2015. The Chair would entertain a  
24 motion to approve.

25 COMMISSIONER MOORE: So moved.



1 COMMISSIONER BISHOP VANN: Supported.

2 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly  
3 moved and supported. Discussion? Those in  
4 favor, aye?

5 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

6 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed?  
7 Motion carries. As I stated, the Chair is not  
8 here tonight, but she's been active with the  
9 Board and also active with the DPD. I think she  
10 attended the weigh-in just the other day in terms  
11 of the healthy moment. I'm pretty sure Asst.  
12 Chief White will be reporting out there, but the  
13 Chair was in attendance at that activity, so I'm  
14 pleased that she represented the Board and maybe,  
15 as Conrad Mallett stated -- Commissioner Mallett  
16 stated, maybe we can do an unofficial weigh-in  
17 after the holidays.

18 So as we move forward, next item of  
19 business would be -- I guess I can lift up -- you  
20 should have a newsletter. We have copies of the  
21 newsletter being circulated and this is a  
22 historic night for the Board. This is the first  
23 day of our full mandated Charter duties and  
24 responsibilities being reinstated. I think we  
25 should have a round of applause.

1 (APPLAUSE.)

2 COMMISSIONER BELL: And we're looking  
3 forward to -- we have really come a long way in  
4 the last couple of months in this transition  
5 period of working with Mayor Duggan and his staff  
6 and also working with Chief Craig and this staff,  
7 and so nothing has changed. It's just a matter  
8 of our duties and responsibilities is now  
9 mandated by Charter and is outlined.

10 I'm not going to spend any time going  
11 over this document, but I commend our Board  
12 Secretary George Anthony for putting it together  
13 and you can read it as your leisure and also it's  
14 going to be online and I appreciate your support  
15 in terms of quite a few people have lobbied for  
16 us to get our powers back. It's democracy as you  
17 know by the City Charter, you voted it in in  
18 2012. The elections took place in 2013, we were  
19 sworn in our elected commissioners in 2014 and  
20 now we have the opportunity for fulfill our  
21 duties and responsibilities that we raised our  
22 right hand for in terms of Charter duties and  
23 responsibilities, so you can read it at your  
24 leisure. If you have any questions or concerns,  
25 we appreciate it when you come to the open mic --

1                   We lost Ron Scott last week. We had a  
2                   silent prayer for Ron and his funeral as you well  
3                   know is going to be at the Historic Little Rock  
4                   Baptist Church this coming Saturday at 11  
5                   o'clock.

6                   I'm going to ask for a silent prayer  
7                   for Ron when we have an open mic. That was his  
8                   opportunity to speak. We gave him two minutes,  
9                   but he always took seven and a half, so I think  
10                  we will have an open mic silent prayer for  
11                  Brother Ron Scott and you know his history.

12                  If you didn't know, you should have  
13                  been tuned in to all the media because he was a  
14                  media person. He was a freedom fighter and he  
15                  definitely supported this Board. I'm glad that  
16                  he was still alive when the council voted.

17                  He's not with us tonight, but he's with  
18                  us in spirit and like others, I'm going to lift  
19                  him up on Saturday morning because he's in a  
20                  better place, he's with the Good Lord for those  
21                  who believe in terms of the Christian concept; I  
22                  do, so I just --

23                  COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, sir.  
24                  Mr. Vice-Chair, I'll reserve my comments for that  
25                  time.

1                   COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir. I'm just  
2 speaking out in terms of the Chair speaking out  
3 when we have a resolution to read. The next item  
4 would be Asst. Chief White.

5                   ASST. CHIEF WHITE: Good evening again  
6 through the Chair. I would be remiss if I did  
7 not -- and in trouble if I did not tell you that  
8 the Chief had a previous engagement, but wanted  
9 to be here tonight, but could not. He sends his  
10 regrets.

11                   Tonight, our reports are all positive.  
12 Crime continues to trend in the right direction,  
13 we're very excited about that. We have a new  
14 program that we're launching called the Green  
15 Light Initiative which is going to involve gas  
16 stations. Where you see green lights, those will  
17 be deemed to be gas stations that are connected  
18 to the police department through our realtime  
19 crime center which we're in the process of  
20 developing now.

21                   In addition to that keeping with the  
22 trend of good news is we launched a very  
23 important initiative in the police department  
24 this week with our fitness program, a 90-day  
25 fitness challenge with the officers.

1           We had over 300 officers sign up to  
2 participate and there will be a lot of activities  
3 with that program in the next few weeks involving  
4 various challenges that the officers will be  
5 involved in through the team lead. So look  
6 forward to hearing a lot of information on that  
7 as we go forward.

8           We're going to blossom that program and  
9 take it to the next level next year where we're  
10 going to have challenges for the officers where  
11 they can earn awards and things like that.

12           Also the 5th Precinct grand opening is  
13 Wednesday, December 16 at 3 PM, long overdue for  
14 the area. 3500 Connor is the building that we've  
15 retrofitted into a new 5th Precinct.

16           Invite you all to come by. It's going  
17 to be a beautiful facility and a great addition  
18 to that community having the police back there.

19           We're also in the process of  
20 negotiating -- well, actually negotiations have  
21 completed. We're in the process of programming  
22 now the 8th Precinct which is going to be at the  
23 apron, at the end of the Meijer location at Grand  
24 River and Lahser -- it's not really Lahser, what  
25 is that, Grand River and Six Mile right at the

1 bottom which puts it literally across the street  
2 from the old 8th Precinct, one of the most  
3 densely populated areas of the city. So we're  
4 very excited about the opportunity to put police  
5 back in that community.

6 And last, but certainly not least  
7 excited to be here tonight to honor the men and  
8 women of the Detroit Police Department that you  
9 see at the back of the room that every day go  
10 out, sunup, sundown, rain, snow, sleet and put  
11 their lives on the line so that we can enjoy this  
12 great city and the freedoms that we take for  
13 granted, so let's give them a big hand for being  
14 there.

15 (APPLAUSE.)

16 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: And that is my  
17 report.

18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir.  
19 Comments and questions for Asst. Chief?

20 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Through the Chair,  
21 Asst. Chief White, we've heard a lot about pay  
22 raises, police officers receiving pay raises.  
23 When will that kick in for them? When will they  
24 realize their pay raises as well as their command  
25 officers?

1 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: My understanding is  
2 now that everything has been ratified that they  
3 will kick in early part of the year.

4 COMMISSIONER MOORE: And do we know  
5 exactly where the money came from from the  
6 Detroit Police Department budget?

7 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: Yes. A couple of  
8 places actually. Ironically part of the 8th  
9 Precinct revealed some funding. We had some old  
10 bonds that were secured a number of years ago and  
11 were not used. We had secured approximately \$8  
12 million for the 8th Precinct and they were able  
13 to use some of the funding from the bond to fund  
14 the 8th Precinct and use some of that money for  
15 raises.

16 The Chief of Police identified an  
17 additional \$5 million and I don't have all the  
18 facts on the remaining dollars, but I know the  
19 total \$41 million.

20 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you. Can  
21 you somehow e-mail me where that additional \$5  
22 million came from?

23 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: Yes, that's no  
24 problem.

25 COMMISSIONER BISHOP VANN: I wanted to

1 ask the Chief tonight with regard of course to  
2 the proliferation of the medical marijuana  
3 dispensaries in our community. One of the  
4 highest complaints in my area in Northwest  
5 Detroit is, of course, the proliferation of these  
6 establishments.

7 I know that there are some discussions  
8 going on with City Council. We spoke with the  
9 Mayor on last Thursday about it and mentioned it.  
10 I think here's a hearing coming up in the  
11 subsequent week with regard to this. I'm just  
12 wondering, has any progress been made on this.

13 While we are yet deliberating on this,  
14 these establishments are proliferating in the  
15 community and bringing all kinds of problems to  
16 the communities, so I just wondered was there  
17 anything else new on this.

18 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: Through the Chair,  
19 progress, yes, the fact that there's  
20 conversation, there's some activity and  
21 legislature over the issue. Have we resolved it  
22 yet, no, we have not.

23 I agree it seems like almost every few  
24 blocks there's a facility opening up. I know  
25 that the city attorneys are working on it and we



1 expect to have some resolution soon. I don't  
2 really have a lot more at this point, sorry.

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: Any other comments,  
4 commissioners?

5 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, sir.  
6 Through the Chair, Chief, an FBI agent was shot  
7 today. What is his condition? Do you have an  
8 update on that agent?

9 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: Deputy Chief  
10 Fitzgerald, can you come up and answer that,  
11 please?

12 DEP. CHIEF FITZGERALD: Good evening.  
13 Deputy Chief Charles Fitzgerald. Yes, he's doing  
14 fine, he had surgery a little bit earlier. At  
15 the time of the execution of the warrant he  
16 didn't even realize he was shot, he thought he  
17 had possibly broken his arm by swinging the ram  
18 itself. But other than that broken arm he  
19 is in stable condition now, he's recovering, and  
20 he will be fine.

21 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Thank you.

22 MS. BERNARD: Linda Bernard.  
23 Mr. Chairman, Commissioner Vann, if you look at  
24 the very last page in your information pack there  
25 is a "Just Say No" rally at the Spirit of Love

1 Church, 15635 Mack Avenue. It's about the  
2 marijuana dispensaries and there's some  
3 information there on the very last page, the  
4 marijuana. Thank you.

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, ma'am.

6 DR. IVERSON: There's going to be a  
7 public hearing on medical marijuana December 17,  
8 1 PM in the Irma Henderson Auditorium in the  
9 Coleman A. Young Center.

10 And one of the things that's important  
11 is that we get many residents from Detroit out.  
12 In the past there have been many persons from the  
13 other areas outside the city who have come down  
14 there and spoke against it because of the  
15 restrictions that are in -- this is the second  
16 part.

17 The first part was on they have to have  
18 a business license. The second part is zoning  
19 B-2, B-4 and industrial areas. And no  
20 drive-through, have to be 1,000 feet from schools  
21 and churches and that is what is important.

22 They do not want these restrictions in  
23 place, so what I'm really saying is that the  
24 Detroit residents in particular should come out  
25 to that hearing and the Council will hear them

1 and they most likely will not vote at that time.

2 By procedure they have to have another  
3 hearing prior to the voting, but the bill has  
4 restrictions in it and we need to get out as many  
5 many residents to come out for that hearing.

6 It's going to be crowded. I would  
7 suggest if they say 1 o'clock, I would say if  
8 you're coming you should be there at 12 o'clock  
9 because the fire marshals will not allow anyone  
10 to stand in the auditorium in the back.

11 If you don't be seated, you got to go  
12 outside. But again, December 17, 1 PM, Irma  
13 Henderson Auditorium, Coleman A. Young Municipal  
14 Center.

15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. Before  
16 we move to the 2nd Precinct I'd like to introduce  
17 Linda Westly from Council President Brenda Jones'  
18 office. Thank you for your attendance.

19 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Through the Chair,  
20 also Joy Lewis from Councilman Jay Leland's  
21 office is in the house as well.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. Any  
23 others? Okay, 2nd Precinct I guess.

24 CAPTAIN ROCHON: Good evening. The 2nd  
25 Precinct is located at 13530 Leisure, city of

1 Detroit 48227. It encompasses 10.29 square miles  
2 and bound on the north by McNichols, the south  
3 Warren, the west Greenfield and the east  
4 Livernois.

5 The 2nd Precinct borders the  
6 neighboring communities in Dearborn. The notable  
7 locations, businesses, organizations within the  
8 2nd Precinct are, of course, Adam Butzel  
9 Recreation Center, Xfinity which is also Comcast,  
10 Uncle Ray's Potato Chips and Bay's English  
11 Muffins.

12 According to the 2010 U.S. Census, the  
13 precinct has a total population of about 60,000  
14 citizens. We have no high schools, but I think  
15 we have about four or five middle schools and  
16 junior high schools.

17 The 2nd Precinct has undertaken the  
18 following: On average we answer about 1,800  
19 9-1-1 calls every week. We also issue between  
20 400 and 500 tickets on a weekly basis.

21 The 2nd Precinct has now deployed an 80  
22 series which works between shifts so we always  
23 good coverage even though they're rotating  
24 shifts. We have good coverage in-between those  
25 shifts. We have a supervisor and two units at

1 work in-between those shifts.

2 They answer runs and right now by far  
3 they're leading our precinct in the number of  
4 citizen contacts they have outside of regular  
5 police runs.

6 We have an incident that takes place  
7 within the precinct. We do what we call a  
8 wrap-around which usually involves when there's a  
9 shooting or many burglaries that take place we  
10 usually have the officers do what we call a  
11 wrap-around.

12 What we started with our community  
13 relations, our NPOs, is that when there's a B&E  
14 that takes place and there's a lot of them in a  
15 particular area the NPOs will go to the residents  
16 on that block and talk to them about what they  
17 can do to help us, we can work with them in  
18 reducing the number of B&Es we have.

19 One think that's not listed here is the  
20 2nd Precinct is consistently in the top three in  
21 terms of our response time. Right now I think  
22 Platoon 2 is leading in response time, I think  
23 they just told me 6.2 minutes is our response  
24 time which is leading the city all around on that  
25 particular precinct.

1                   Lastly, what we've done is we've  
2                   established a very, very, very positive  
3                   relationship with our gas stations. We're  
4                   currently in some -- and I won't call them  
5                   negotiations, but we're currently meeting with  
6                   them on a regular basis to try to get them to  
7                   close the gas stations down early and not be 24  
8                   hours, so that's probably one of my -- I won't  
9                   say biggest challenges, but we had two meetings  
10                  so far and we have right now 99 percent agreement  
11                  to do that, so we're still in the process of  
12                  working out some of the kinks and that is my  
13                  presentation.

14                  COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioners, any  
15                  questions, concerns from the good captain here  
16                  from the 2nd Precinct?

17                  COMMISSIONER MOORE: Through the Chair,  
18                  I just want to commend Captain Harold Rochon and  
19                  his leadership team, Sgt. Vanessa Wyatt. You  
20                  guys do a great service to our district and to  
21                  the precinct as well and I'm happy that Capt.  
22                  Walton from the 6th Precinct is here, Captain  
23                  Nick Kyriacou from the 10th Precinct and I'm very  
24                  proud to work with you; thank you.

25                  (APPLAUSE.)

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Any other  
2 questions?

3 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, sir,  
4 Mr. Chair. Capt. Rochon, you talk about closing  
5 gas stations down early. How -- are they  
6 receptive to that?

7 CAPT. ROCHON: They're very receptive.  
8 The biggest concern that we had with them was  
9 having patrols available when they close so they  
10 don't break into the stations. Another concern  
11 that they had why they're willing to close is  
12 because they don't make any money on midnights  
13 and what they told us is that they have employees  
14 that they have to pay, they have a light bill and  
15 pay some other bills that they wouldn't have to  
16 incur if they shut down.

17 And we talked about crime being reduced  
18 when our service stations shut down. I will say  
19 this. Our service stations in the 2nd Precinct,  
20 we have a very good relationship with them. Most  
21 of them come to the meetings -- I won't say come  
22 to the meetings -- most of them we communicate  
23 with them on a regular basis and they seem to be  
24 cleaning up a lot of their issues that they had  
25 prior to me coming there.

1 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Thank you.

2 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay, Captain, if  
3 there are no other questions, thank you for your  
4 ongoing commitment to the 2nd Precinct.

5 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: Do you want to do  
6 the presentation now or --

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: I think it would be  
8 appropriate since most of these officers standing  
9 on their feet, they're accustomed to standing on  
10 their feet, but we want to go forth if the Board  
11 will allow me to alter the agenda to address the  
12 officers of the quarter that would be proper.

13 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: Thank you very  
14 much. If I could ask Deputy Chief LeValley and  
15 Deputy Chief Fitzgerald to join me at the front,  
16 please, for the presentation and the captain from  
17 the 2nd Precinct, please:

18 Police Officer Timothy Evans. What  
19 we're going to do is we're going to acknowledge  
20 our officers of the quarter, the hard work that  
21 they have done for us. We're not going to read  
22 the entire bio of what the officers have done.

23 Officer Evans, however, is not here  
24 tonight so the captain from the 2nd Precinct will  
25 accept on his behalf.



1 We'll move on to the 3rd Precinct,  
2 Police Officer Unice Hunter.

3 (APPLAUSE.)

4 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: And if I could have  
5 the 3rd Precinct captain come up. Officer Hunter  
6 joined the police department November 28, 1994.

7 (APPLAUSE.)

8 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: Police Officer  
9 Nigel Villarreal and the captain of the 4th  
10 Precinct, please.

11 (APPLAUSE).

12 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: Officer Villarreal  
13 joined the police department in 1998.

14 (APPLAUSE.)

15 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: 5th Precinct  
16 captain and Police Officer Jeremy Moreland.

17 (APPLAUSE.)

18 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: 6th Precinct,  
19 Police Officer Matthew Kurek and the 6th Precinct  
20 captain, please.

21 (APPLAUSE.)

22 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: This officer was  
23 joining in 2014.

24 The 7th Precinct captain and Police  
25 Officer Willie Robinson.

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: I'm standing with  
2 him. I started my career in 1971 with the 7th  
3 Precinct.

4 (APPLAUSE).

5 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: He joined the  
6 department in 2008. 10th Precinct Police Officer  
7 Steven Townsend and the 10th Precinct captain,  
8 please.

9 (APPLAUSE).

10 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: Another one of our  
11 fine 2008 police officers.

12 11th Precinct captain and Police  
13 Officer Jana Greeno.

14 (APPLAUSE).

15 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: That 2008 class was  
16 a great class, another 2008 police officer.  
17 Congratulations.

18 (APPLAUSE).

19 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: 12th Precinct  
20 captain and Police Officer Katherine Price.

21 (APPLAUSE).

22 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: Officer Price  
23 joined the department 10 years ago and spent her  
24 entire career at the 12th Precinct.  
25 Congratulations.

1 (APPLAUSE.)

2 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: And last but not  
3 least of the Metro Division Police Officer Adnan  
4 Baliija.

5 (APPLAUSE).

6 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: These officers will  
7 be allowed to park in the captain's parking space  
8 for the next quarter.

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: I just want to say  
10 on behalf of the Board I'm glad that this came  
11 back to the Board of Police Commissioners where  
12 we honor these officers at our community meeting.

13 And you can see the hard work -- you  
14 can't give enough recognition for these officers  
15 who work 24/7/365 with all the issues throughout  
16 the country, let's give them another round of  
17 applause.

18 (APPLAUSE).

19 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: I did not go  
20 through the bios in the interest of time because  
21 we have such a heavy agenda. I don't want to  
22 slight any of the officers. Each bio contains  
23 the number of arrests, the number of guns they've  
24 gotten off the streets, number of tickets written  
25 and what's consistent across the board with every

1 officer in this room is that these are some of  
2 the hardest working men and women across the  
3 country. They're out there every day for us.

4 (APPLAUSE).

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: So on behalf of the  
6 Chief's Office and everyone in the command staff  
7 we thank you for doing the work that you do every  
8 day; thank you.

9 (APPLAUSE).

10 COMMISSIONER BELL: I want to give  
11 recognition to our reservists; come forward,  
12 DPRs. You are the backbone, you give so much  
13 support to the reserves. Let's give these  
14 reservists, the leadership team, a round of  
15 applause.

16 (APPLAUSE.)

17 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you,  
18 appreciate it.

19 The young gal on the right, I went to  
20 high school with back in 1902. If we move  
21 forward, standing committee reports?

22 New business? We're really privileged  
23 to honor Mr. Ron Scott and I'm going to ask  
24 Commissioner Bishop Vann to -- the last picture  
25 -- I mean, one of the few pictures I had the

1 opportunity to take with Bishop Vann standing  
2 alongside Ron Scott and we utilized in the  
3 newsletter that was really a happy occasion.  
4 This is a nice picture, I'm so appreciative of  
5 our Board Secretary to include that photo, so  
6 Bishop Vann, you got the honors.

7 COMMISSIONER BISHOP VANN: Thank you,  
8 Mr. Chairman. This is a resolution in tribute  
9 and honor of Ron Scott, a warrior for justice and

10 WHEREAS, Ron Scott was raised in the  
11 Jeffries Projects by an astute single mother of  
12 four who eventually earned her degree and became  
13 a teacher and

14 WHEREAS Ron Scott attended the  
15 University of Michigan in 1965, later graduated  
16 before affirmative action was in place to ensure  
17 educational equity and

18 WHEREAS Ron Scott referred to himself  
19 as a transformational anthropologist working to  
20 change human and social behavior toward peace and  
21 reconciliation and

22 WHEREAS Ron Scott co-founded the  
23 Detroit Chapter of the Black Panther Party and  
24 later founded the Detroit Coalition against  
25 Police Brutality and

1 WHEREAS Ron Scott in his quest for  
2 social and economic justice for blacks,  
3 Hispanics, minorities, women and the poor and  
4 disenfranchised, dedicated his life and God-given  
5 talents to advocacy using the most powerful tool  
6 of all, print and broadcast media and

7 WHEREAS the producer and host of  
8 Detroit Black Journal, one of the longest running  
9 African-American focus shows in the USA and a  
10 spokesman for the Detroit Coalition against  
11 Police Brutality Ron Scott took political,  
12 business and government leaders to task on  
13 matters of importance to disenfranchised  
14 communities and especially abuses of police power  
15 against community residents and

16 WHEREAS as a result of Ron Scott's  
17 advocacy and taking it to the streets in 2003 the  
18 coalition was successful in initiating a  
19 Department of Justice investigation of the  
20 Detroit Police Department which culminated in  
21 federal oversight of the police department for 13  
22 years and the Federal Consent Decree and

23 WHEREAS in 2013 Ron Scott advocated for  
24 changes in the Detroit City Charter expanding and  
25 strengthening the Board of Police Commissioners

1 and making it more accountable to the community  
2 through the electoral process and

3 WHEREAS Ron Scott challenged and was an  
4 outspoken critic of the emergency manager's  
5 decision to limit the Board of Police  
6 Commissioners' powers during and after the  
7 conclusion of the City's bankruptcy and

8 WHEREAS Ron Scott viewed the Board of  
9 Police Commissioners not only as the oversight  
10 body of the police department and as the final  
11 arbiter to ensure fairness and transparency in  
12 police operations, but also as a forum where  
13 persons aggrieved by police actions could seek  
14 redress and

15 WHEREAS Ron Scott attended virtually  
16 every Board of Police Commissioners meeting and  
17 spoke as a statesman and as the conscious of the  
18 Commission on matters raised at the Board of  
19 Police Commissioners meetings to ensure that the  
20 Board of Police Commissioners would stay focused  
21 on the non-discriminatory exercise of police  
22 power, human rights and justice and

23 WHEREAS Ron Scott worked on the streets  
24 for youth and with area gangs to stop the  
25 violence, create peace zones, an initiative he

1 started and successfully implemented in Detroit's  
2 neighborhoods and

3 WHEREAS before there was an  
4 organization called Black Lives Matter Ron Scott  
5 fought for black lives and for minorities in  
6 Detroit and across America, to stop police  
7 brutality against people of color and

8 WHEREAS Ron Scott was a decent gentle  
9 man, a savant, who's extremely articulate probing  
10 in thought and action, courageous, sensitive and  
11 kind even when receiving no recognition or reward  
12 he always did the right thing in supporting  
13 numerous justice initiatives and the Detroit  
14 Board of Police Commissioners.

15 NOW THEREFORE BE IT UNANIMOUSLY  
16 RESOLVED by the Detroit Board of Police  
17 Commissioners that the Board recognizes and pays  
18 tribute to Ron Scott as a drum major for justice  
19 and his legacy by establishing in his honor the  
20 Ron Scott Award for justice and transparency in  
21 police community relations.

22 And further may Ron Scott also be  
23 remembered as the one man who made Detroit a  
24 better place by educating the police and the  
25 community on the non-discriminatory use of force



1 and on the dignity and respect due  
2 African-American citizens and all humanity.

3 Mr. Chairman, I'll move that we adopt  
4 this resolution.

5 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Support.

6 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly  
7 moved and supported. Any discussion? Those in  
8 favor?

9 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

10 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed?  
11 Motion carries. I think Commissioner Crawford  
12 wants to speak to Mr. Scott.

13 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, sir.  
14 Thank you, Bishop Vann for --

15 Mr. Chair for a number of years I've  
16 known Ron Scott -- yes, sir, Mr. Chair. For a  
17 number of years I've known Ron Scott long before  
18 the days of the group that he founded, the  
19 Coalition Against Police Brutality. We engaged  
20 in activism across this city, particularly --  
21 most of it is not even noted by those in the  
22 police department over the years, but I talked to  
23 Ron Scott literally every -- well, not every day,  
24 but often, quite often, during the week and of  
25 course we always met at the meetings here.

1                   And Ron -- I liken Ron to the oversight  
2                   over the oversight. I say that because that's  
3                   what this board is about. This is the civilian  
4                   oversight of the Detroit Police Department.

5                   And Ron was more or less the civilian  
6                   oversight of us because commissioners, as you  
7                   well know, when Ron stood at the podium he held  
8                   us to task quite often, took us to task quite  
9                   often. Ron in his last days, one thing he was  
10                  very adamant about and that was about the  
11                  Commission being restored to full power.

12                  And the truth is that -- well, I guess  
13                  one needs to really go back and understand the  
14                  real history because it was all about Emergency  
15                  Manager Order 42 which I considered unlawful and  
16                  was a violation of the State Constitution, the  
17                  City Charter and disenfranchised the voters in  
18                  the city of Detroit.

19                  And I know in terms of reconciliation I  
20                  know what Ron would want me to do and that is he  
21                  would want me to reconcile that. So for the  
22                  Governor, I forgive the Governor for taking power  
23                  from the Commission. I forgive those who  
24                  conspired with Kevyn Orr to take power from the  
25                  Commission. This is truth in fact.

1           It also needs to be known too that the  
2           last year I believe when -- it was a motion on  
3           the table that we go to court and fight this in  
4           court because you disenfranchised the voters in  
5           my district and all the voters in the city of  
6           Detroit when you took this and there was no  
7           reason to take power from the Commission because  
8           it had nothing to do with the bankruptcy.

9           So we have to tell the truth here, and  
10          Ron fought that all the way. And I put the  
11          motion on the table to go to court, but some of  
12          the commissioners, and we all approved it,  
13          because I thought, you know, it was -- this would  
14          be best suited to go to litigation because  
15          there's no doubt we would have prevailed, but Ron  
16          sought the activity of activism and he engaged in  
17          activism every single day.

18          And the commissioners who've met with  
19          Michigan United -- see, you have to understand  
20          how we really get this power so to speak back. I  
21          say we never lost it, but it was an activist, it  
22          was the citizens of this city, it was Michigan  
23          United and some of the commissioners here who  
24          really were a part of participating with Michigan  
25          United.

1 I made a few of the meetings, but some  
2 of you were really -- made all the meetings and  
3 engaged with the people in the community.

4 So it wasn't -- and it was that  
5 activism from Michigan United who went to the  
6 City Council because they circulated petitions  
7 around the city and told the Council members if  
8 you didn't sign it to restore power they were  
9 going to recall the council members. See, I got  
10 to tell the truth up here, I have to tell the  
11 truth.

12 Of course, they're the ones that signed  
13 that took away the power. I forgive them too.  
14 This is reconciliation. I forgive those to took  
15 the power, but I'll never forget and I'll say  
16 never never again.

17 So that's why we're here today because  
18 of Ron Scott, because of Michigan United and  
19 those who engaged in that activism and that fight  
20 to bring this -- to restore this commission back  
21 to power.

22 So yeah, I forgive all those who are  
23 part of this which was unlawful, but we're here  
24 today so this is reconciliation. So I'm  
25 personally ready to move on.

1           So Governor Snyder, those that  
2           conspired with Kevyn Orr behind doors violating  
3           the Open Meetings Act and couldn't even find  
4           minutes to the meeting that they had, members of  
5           the City Council who signed to take the power,  
6           who signed supposedly to give it back, I forgive  
7           all of you.

8           I know that's what Ron would want me  
9           probably to say in reconciliation. Thank you.

10           COMMISSIONER BELL: Thanks,  
11           Commissioner Crawford.

12           (APPLAUSE.)

13           COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioner Moore,  
14           resolution for Ms. Sandra Pickens, please.

15           COMMISSIONER MOORE: Yes, sir.  
16           Ms. Pickens couldn't be here this evening, but I  
17           will read the, "Now therefore".

18           Resolution honoring Ms. Sandra Pickens.  
19           NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Detroit  
20           Board of Police Commissioners speaking for the  
21           citizens of the city of Detroit and the Detroit  
22           Police Department acknowledges the generous  
23           spirit of Ms. Sandra Pickens. Her commitment to  
24           community service is exemplary and her devotion  
25           to improving the quality of life for all citizens

1 in her community and throughout the city of  
2 Detroit merit our highest regards.

3 We thank and congratulate you,  
4 Ms. Sandra Pickens, the Detroit Board of Police  
5 Commissioners.

6 Move for adoption.

7 COMMISSIONER BISHOP VANN: Supported.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Properly moved and  
9 supported. Discussion? Those in favor, aye?

10 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Opposed? Motion  
12 carries. Thank you, Commissioner Moore.

13 At this time any old business before  
14 this board.

15 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Mr. Chair,  
16 under old business and the reason I bring this  
17 back to the table is that last week we were -- it  
18 was kind of a debate, it wasn't even heated, but  
19 a statement was made to me that I guess they  
20 didn't know -- the people didn't know what I want  
21 and I'm kind of cleaning that statement up.

22 And I'm speaking to the Commission or  
23 us as a Commission. I did some research. I've  
24 read the Open Meetings Act, I just thought I  
25 would do a refresher. I read the City Charter

1 numerous times, I just thought I would refresh on  
2 reading the City Charter and I've done that.

3 Also I've read our bylaws, the  
4 Commission bylaws, and I just want to say on the  
5 record that as a Commission as I stated last week  
6 there is a procedure where things are supposed to  
7 come out of the committee, come before the full  
8 board and the full board is supposed to vote for  
9 it.

10 And so that my suggestion is that --  
11 and everyone I'm sure on the board has this  
12 material -- and maybe they want to be inclined  
13 sometimes to just do as I did, even though I was  
14 on point last week, and like I said when I sit  
15 here on the Board it's my intention to do  
16 everything aboveboard, so thank you, sir.

17 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir,  
18 duly noted. Any other old business?

19 Announcements. Our next meeting will  
20 be Thursday, December 17, 2015 at 3 PM at the  
21 Public Safety Headquarters and in fact that would  
22 be our last meeting for the year. We will be  
23 taking a two-week break and we will be  
24 reconvening next year.

25 Our next community meeting is going to

1 be in the 12th Precinct on January 14, the  
2 Arab-American & Chaldean Council, 62 E. Seven  
3 Mile Road and it's listed hopefully in the  
4 material that you have.

5 So at this time I'm going to ask --  
6 could we stand for a moment of silence as we open  
7 up the mic for Ron Scott.

8 (MOMENT OF SILENCE - STANDING) .

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, oral  
10 communication from the audience. Please give  
11 your name, you have two minutes, be respectful  
12 and the time frame and we appreciate you coming  
13 to the mic.

14 MR. WILSON: Mr. Bell, Vice-Chair and  
15 to the honorable body of commissioners, good  
16 evening, and fellow citizens. My name is Tom  
17 Wilson and I'd like to take part of that seven  
18 minutes that Ron would take in terms of  
19 addressing the body and my concerns.

20 It's about the equipment, the military  
21 equipment that the police departments -- and I  
22 say departments -- are going to have to send back  
23 to DC. I heard the comment about, you know, it  
24 makes the police department seem too militarized.  
25 I mean, excuse me?



1                   They are a military body. I don't see  
2                   how it's going to make them too militarized and  
3                   believe me, I believe this too. In terms of the  
4                   job that you all do, there's not enough money in  
5                   this world for me to do what you all do and that  
6                   is put on that blue uniform and that badge and  
7                   take that vow to protect and serve.

8                   My hat is off to you. Anytime I have a  
9                   chance to stand before a mic and say that, I will  
10                  say that. My hat is off to Detroit's finest.

11                  And also in terms of you all need as  
12                  much help as you can get. There's less than  
13                  1,500 police officers on force. That's the  
14                  lowest it's been since, what, 1920 or whatever.  
15                  I mean my myself personally, I don't think  
16                  anybody needs -- should have a gun except the  
17                  police and the military, but that's a mute point.

18                  But the way it's going, we got all of  
19                  these bad guys, to use that for lack of a better  
20                  word, out there on the street. You all go out  
21                  there every day to do what you got to do. And  
22                  just like with that shootout with those two  
23                  terrorists, if they didn't have the kind of  
24                  equipment that they had to roll up on that car,  
25                  it might have been some police officers injured

1 as well.

2 And I mean I love the President. If he  
3 ran a third time I would vote for him again, but  
4 I think to use the word, I'm not going to say he  
5 was wrong, I'll blame it on his head, not his  
6 heart in terms of him asking that that equipment  
7 be brought back because what it's going to do, go  
8 to some yard, sit there and rust when it could be  
9 here and all around the country and elsewhere.

10 But anyway, thanks for letting me  
11 speak.

12 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. Yes,  
13 ma'am.

14 MS. BROWN: My name is Theo Brown,  
15 co-founder of research and I came this evening to  
16 ask two things. One -- maybe a third -- anyway,  
17 one, has there been any change in the powers, the  
18 policies for this commission, yes or no?

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: The answer is no.  
20 It's mandated by Charter and that was signed off  
21 by the Council and implemented on the date  
22 December 10.

23 MS. BROWN: So you receive your full  
24 powers back?

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am.

1 MS. BROWN: The Charter was not  
2 changed?

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: No, ma'am. We  
4 cannot change the Charter. The only way the  
5 Charter can be changed is with the amendment by  
6 the people of the city of Detroit.

7 MS. BROWN: Well, you know --

8 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: No compromise.

9 MS. BROWN: Kevyn Orr did some  
10 scurrilous things.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: That's over with.

12 MS. BROWN: I just thought I would ask  
13 while he was here. The other question has to do  
14 with the body cameras. I strongly support the  
15 use of body cameras.

16 There was a report that there was an  
17 experiment I guess you would say in one zip code  
18 and it was very successful.

19 So the question is why would it take 2  
20 to 20 years in order to have body cameras  
21 city-wide. I know you didn't do it, but --

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: My understanding,  
23 ma'am, if you want a reply, is that we will have  
24 body cameras in 2016. We stood with the Mayor  
25 and Chief of Police, it's just now happening in

1 2016, that would be the start of the process.

2 MS. BROWN: I know you supported them,  
3 but he was the one who started talking about how  
4 long it's going to take.

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: No, he didn't say  
6 that. He said 2016. Am I right, Assistant chief  
7 White?

8 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: Yeah, we're going  
9 to launch the project in 2016. The vendor that  
10 we had was unable to fulfill the orders, so we  
11 are still now in the process of finding a new  
12 vendor.

13 MS. BROWN: That's what the problem  
14 was, okay. But we are told 2016, before December  
15 31, 2016?

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am,  
17 hopefully, yes. That's my understanding.

18 MS. BROWN: We'll be watching, thank  
19 you.

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am, thank  
21 you.

22 MS. MORRIS: Good evening,  
23 commissioners. My name is Tawana Morris, I'm a  
24 retired police officer and investigator. I used  
25 to be the investigator for the Detroit Coalition

1 Against Police Brutality and 90 percent of the  
2 time when Ron was up here doing what he does it  
3 was because of the investigations that we at the  
4 coalition did.

5 I'm happy to see that your powers are  
6 restored at 101 percent I hope. My question, can  
7 the people that was up under this illegal  
8 emergency manager come back if they had issues  
9 that were unresolved according to the Police  
10 Commissioner bylaws.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: My understanding  
12 that that's an issue we're not properly prepared  
13 -- my understanding is it's over with as far as  
14 the Board of Police Commissioners, we have our  
15 power back. If you have any other issue with  
16 Mr. Orr, that probably would be another forum.

17 MS. MORRIS: No, no. What I was saying  
18 was if you had an issue up under this, up under  
19 the past administration and things were not done  
20 properly --

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: I assume as a  
22 citizen you always have recourse to voice those  
23 concerns before the proper authority, yes.

24 MS. MORRIS: Okay and are you still in  
25 up under the DOJ consent agreement?

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, we have a  
2 monitoring process for a period of time. Is that  
3 going to end?

4 MS. MORRIS: The DOJ does it?

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, they are  
6 monitoring for a period of time. When they ended  
7 was 15 months. I think the clock is still  
8 ticking on that, am I right?

9 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: That's correct.  
10 Through the Chair, it's scheduled to end March of  
11 2016.

12 MS. MORRIS: I would encourage everyone  
13 that was not satisfied up under this past process  
14 to come to the Board and I'd like to adhere that  
15 my 7th District commissioner has done a stellar  
16 job and I appreciate you.

17 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, ma'am.  
18 Yes, sir.

19 MR. REED: Through the Chair I wanted  
20 to -- my name is Kenneth Reed by the way. I  
21 wanted to thank you all for the resolution that  
22 you did for Ron. Ron and I were very close, we  
23 worked together for many years. I will be sure  
24 to convey what was communicated this evening back  
25 to both Sandra and to the family as well because

1 as we all know, his home-going service is this  
2 upcoming Saturday.

3 There's been a lot of talk concerning,  
4 you know, where his coalition goes and stuff like  
5 that now that Ron has made his physical  
6 transition from this planet, but however that  
7 being said, the coalition will continue on, we  
8 will all come together collectively as a  
9 community to make sure that it goes on.

10 And when there's something that has  
11 happened that is questionable, we will deal with  
12 that. I'm happy to know that you all have your  
13 powers back now and that does my heart good.

14 But, again, like I said, just because  
15 Ron has made his physical transition does not  
16 mean that the coalition has made a transition out  
17 of here just like he has, but we will continue to  
18 work in his memory and in his spirit and we will  
19 do what needs to be done to make sure that people  
20 of the city of Detroit and those who visit the  
21 city of Detroit are treated fairly by officers in  
22 this department, and that things don't revert  
23 back to the way that they once were.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir.

25 (APPLAUSE.)

1 Ms. McKISSEY: My name is Mary MaKissey  
2 and I'm the president of the Detroit Citizens  
3 Police Academy Alumni Association and we're here  
4 -- first I want to thank all of you who attended  
5 our holiday get-together last night. We always  
6 are very happy to see police. We would like to  
7 see more even because we're here to support you  
8 and our organization has grown, and I'm saying  
9 all that to say that I have shirts in the back of  
10 the room that I'm selling as a fund raiser for  
11 our organization and so far not one police has  
12 bought not one shirt so that's not helping our  
13 organization. They're different prices.

14 And I'm glad to be here and thank you  
15 for allowing me, especially you, you are in my  
16 district so thank you so much for allowing me to  
17 sell the shirts and I'm glad to be here.

18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, ma'am.

19 MR. ROSS: Good evening. Have you  
20 smiled today up there, gentlemen? You're free.

21 Back -- my name is Barry Ross from the  
22 Detroit Coalition Against Violence after the  
23 actual name of the brutality organization and I  
24 also go out avidly with Minister Maleek Shabaz in  
25 a peaceful manner where murders and violence have



1 occurred. I've been thinking a lot lately,  
2 watched about 90 hours on CNN about ISIL and I  
3 feel there's a lot to learn on their methodology.

4 But also what really gets me, I've been  
5 out here for about five years, grew up, born in  
6 Detroit, went to Mumford, had a clothing store  
7 downtown Detroit, my family, for 96 years.

8 So I love Detroit. Whether people love  
9 it or not that are not getting involved, that's  
10 okay too. But we don't have a -- I know this is  
11 not -- this is probably not of protocol because  
12 you are not police officers technically, you're  
13 commissioners, right? I came in a little late.  
14 I catch up sort of quick.

15 Violence is not our issue. What are we  
16 going to do -- I just want to throw this out to  
17 the room -- what about the babies coming up?  
18 What about junior high and high school and  
19 college students, young men, young women, with  
20 unhealthy households that are walking to school  
21 past thousands, hundreds of abandoned houses,  
22 walking into a system that could really care less  
23 any more about educating them unfortunately.

24 What's to say they don't turn out  
25 exactly with what we're dealing with now? I'm on

1 the streets all the time, but I submit that  
2 anybody, any man or woman that wants to get ahold  
3 of me and start mentoring literally -- people  
4 have been talking about mentoring -- but I'm  
5 talking about teaching children the value of life  
6 so maybe they don't want to take out somebody.

7 Help them to see that they could work  
8 with disabled people, animal shelters and I know  
9 you guys, maybe you'll just think about this, but  
10 unless we start reaching our children growing up,  
11 it's all over. We've already lost -- okay, I'll  
12 stop, but thank you for listening to me. My name  
13 is Barry Ross and I want to do something and get  
14 involved with the kids.

15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir.

16 MR. ROSS: Thank you.

17 (APPLAUSE.)

18 MS. SHAROBI: Good evening, everyone.  
19 I also wanted to thank the Commission -- my name  
20 is Kimberly Sharobi. I also wanted to thank the  
21 Commission for the resolution that you gave for  
22 Ron Scott and I wanted to emphasize that Ron was  
23 not against police, he was against police  
24 brutality.

25 And I just want to emphasize this

1 because a lot of people would get that  
2 misconstrued that they would say he was against  
3 the police. He had many friends who was police,  
4 had a lot of respect for police officers, so  
5 again, not against police, but against police  
6 brutality and just wanted fair treatment for  
7 everybody on both sides, and I agree with him.

8 Couple more things, he was one of the  
9 most principled people that I knew, extremely  
10 principled, I appreciated that about him.

11 And lastly, look forward to anybody  
12 who's thinking about continuing his efforts with  
13 peace zones, that includes the coalition and  
14 anyone who's interested in that concept. It's a  
15 wonderful concept which does include restorative  
16 justice, talking to your neighbors, doing the  
17 neighborhood policing -- not policing and some of  
18 the things that's already implemented. Thank  
19 you.

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, ma'am.

21 (APPLAUSE).

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: Any others?

23 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, sir,  
24 Mr. Chair. You're absolutely correct, Ron was  
25 about peace zones for life, that was one of his

1 projects, and something that he held dear and he  
2 often talked about, so --

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: I'm going to ask  
4 the Commander to come forward. An issue came up  
5 about militarization of the police department in  
6 terms of equipment, but as you will know it's a  
7 hot issue in the country.

8 And I guess that order came from the  
9 White House, the President of the United States,  
10 but I think when you look at barricaded gunmen,  
11 etc, etc in terms of helping the people of  
12 Detroit, this is the commanding officer that you  
13 don't really see all the time, but all those  
14 issues that come before his team goes out and  
15 they respond to it, so I think he could enlighten  
16 us in terms of hearing from the commander.

17 COMMANDER BARREN: Through the Board,  
18 again Comm. Elvin Barren of Metropolitan  
19 Division. So I did have an opportunity to listen  
20 to the comment as relates to the military  
21 vehicles that the President did recall.

22 Those vehicles were actually the tanks  
23 if you will for better visual. What we have in  
24 Detroit Police Department are industry standard  
25 law enforcement vehicles designed to do the same

1 protection as those military vehicles, but  
2 without the mindset that it's a war machine, so  
3 we did have one at one time. It's since been  
4 returned back. It actually broke down.

5 We did purchase what's called a Bear.  
6 Again, it's an up-armored vehicle, it allows us  
7 that protection. So the gentleman will know, we  
8 do still have two vehicles designed to help us in  
9 crisis situations.

10 A lot of the problems that we're seeing  
11 across the country was police institutions that  
12 were bringing those militarized vehicles to  
13 peaceful protests. And here the Detroit Police  
14 Department we do not do that. Even the vehicles  
15 that we have are brought only to our armed  
16 barricaded gunman situations and we would never  
17 bring those vehicles to a peaceful protest.

18 As this body knows Captain Williams and  
19 I -- Captain Williams, please stand.

20 Captain Williams and I are the  
21 Metropolitan Division response for not only  
22 active shooters, we also handle all the protests  
23 in the city.

24 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, sir,  
25 through the Chair. Commander, thank you for

1 that. The truth is the President recalled that  
2 equipment because of other departments that  
3 abused that equipment. Also too there was no  
4 training. The equipment, army surplus equipment,  
5 the militarization of police department and stuff  
6 like that, the equipment was just given to them,  
7 there was no training.

8 And like you said, in terms of peaceful  
9 protests that a lot of that equipment was used  
10 and deployed, and that's the reason why because  
11 it was -- again there was this rise in activism  
12 across the country and the protests, pressure on  
13 the White House, President, Justice Department,  
14 that's why they took back that equipment.

15 COMM. BARREN: Correct.

16 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: If I may through  
17 the Chair, one of the most, I guess, specific  
18 identifiers is the fact that those vehicles that  
19 were taken back were the tracked vehicles. Can  
20 you talk a little bit about that?

21 COMM. BARREN: Correct, so again just  
22 so the citizens understand, the government has  
23 what's called a 1033 program, so that program  
24 allows law enforcement agencies to gain these  
25 tanks if you will for up-armored protection for

1 high crisis situations.

2 Again, when a citizen looks at that  
3 vehicle, you're thinking a war machine, but there  
4 are vehicles designed again for law enforcement  
5 purposes and that's what you see when you watch a  
6 barricaded gunman with Detroit Police Department.

7 That would be the vehicle that you see  
8 in the background, a law enforcement industry  
9 standard so that you, the citizens, look at that  
10 will understand this is not a war machine, but  
11 it's actually a vehicle used for our protection  
12 and the protection of the citizens.

13 So in a situation that we use for -- if  
14 we have a shooter, we may have offices or  
15 citizens pinned down, this vehicle will be driven  
16 into that hot atmosphere and we have a door that  
17 can open either from the bottom or from the side  
18 that can extract those officers or those citizens  
19 out of that harms way and deliver them to safety.

20 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: Thank you,  
21 Commander, and this is not to debate the validity  
22 of any decision made by the President, this is  
23 simply giving you the information necessary to  
24 make an informed decision or opinion on the  
25 circumstances.

1           If we're in a crisis situation  
2           certainly we want to make sure that our officers  
3           have the equipment and, again, our equipment is  
4           not military equipment, it's police equipment for  
5           the purpose of keeping you safe and keeping our  
6           officers safe, so we just want to make sure you  
7           have the right information.

8           COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you,  
9           Commander and Assistant Chief because in forums  
10          like this we want to make sure you get informed  
11          information where you can somewhat counter some  
12          of the negative information that might be out  
13          there with no foundation and also we are -- this  
14          program, like most programs of the board is now  
15          going to be aired 10 AM on Friday morning and 7  
16          PM that evening following our meeting on a Friday  
17          and that would be if have U-verse -- I mean AT&T  
18          or Comcast you just look it up in terms of the  
19          public access channel when you get an opportunity  
20          and I just want to thank you for coming out  
21          tonight, it's been very rewarding.

22          We were looking at some type of  
23          celebration tonight, but due to the holiday  
24          season so many things going on we will perhaps  
25          postpone that until January or February in terms



1 of recognize those who really helped us and  
2 assisted us and recognizing you in terms of that  
3 type of recognition.

4 But basically as we go forward it's all  
5 about working together. Mother Bernice, you  
6 almost missed your opportunity because when I  
7 start speaking, it's closed.

8 MS. SMITH: I was waiting for you to  
9 finish, young man. Bernice Smith, activist. I  
10 only have one announcement to make and that I  
11 believe the commissioner made it last week in  
12 regards to the Christmas party that's going to be  
13 held for our dear -- Captain Hope is back here --  
14 it's going to be held for Precinct 7 and we would  
15 love very much for everyone to come.

16 It's going to be at the church --  
17 Sacred Heart -- not Sacred Heart, but anyway Mack  
18 and -- behind the McDonald's, that's all I know.

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: Rivard.

20 MS. SMITH: Rivard and we're going to  
21 be having --

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: 5:30, 6.

23 MS. SMITH: 6 o'clock. I'm helping  
24 coordinate it and I'm trying to -- do you want  
25 her to come up?

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: No, no, you're  
2 doing a great job. We want to close this out.  
3 You're going a great job.

4 MS. SMITH: And we're asking for  
5 donations and if you can't give any money, we  
6 would like for you to bring a toy for the  
7 youngsters that are homeless and whoever needs  
8 the toy.

9 But in the meantime we want you to come  
10 and I don't know whether the audience on the 18th  
11 which is next Friday, I don't know whether the  
12 audience -- I'm just so proud of that young man,  
13 I just can't help it because every time I see him  
14 I want everybody to know we're going to lose him,  
15 that is our dear AC White.

16 He is leaving us to go to Ann Arbor to  
17 deal with the people up there and we wish him the  
18 best and the most success for him because we  
19 really need him here, but if it's for his  
20 advantage for him to leave us, we give him all  
21 the kudos in the world.

22 So, again, I want the public to know  
23 we're losing a good man.

24 ASST. CHIEF WHITE: I haven't announced  
25 it yet, but thank you.

1 MS. SMITH: I put it in the -- so it  
2 will be. I will tell you what I need to tell you  
3 next week in regards to the police situation.

4 I want to make it in house, all right.

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.

6 MS. SMITH: Have a good holiday.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: If there's no other  
8 remarks to be made by this body, I want to --

9 MS. SMITH: The young man that was  
10 mauled, his service is going to be Saturday. I  
11 hate to even ask, when it was told to me, but  
12 anyway his services are Saturday and Carvelle,  
13 that's the funeral home that's going to be  
14 handling it, and you can see the viewing  
15 tomorrow.

16 And also we all know about Ron, I don't  
17 even have to tell you that. He was a very good  
18 adversary of mine and we fought and fought, I'm  
19 telling you.

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Mother Bernice, we  
21 already spoke to that.

22 MS. SMITH: Not my thing.

23 COMMISSIONER BELL: We want to close  
24 out, thank you.

25 MS. SMITH: You always do me that way.

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, I love  
2 you.

3 MS. SMITH: I love you too.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay. Once again,  
5 I want to thank you for coming out tonight. It  
6 was good to recognize these officers and I  
7 appreciate their service and recognition.

8 I want to thank Commissioner Sanders  
9 for his first community meeting. I hope this was  
10 more enjoyable versus our last meeting and I want  
11 to thank all the commissioners and AC White.

12 If I don't see you between now and  
13 Christmas, have a safe and blessed Christmas and  
14 holiday and kind in mind why we celebrate the  
15 season.

16 Commissioners, I will entertain a  
17 motion.

18 COMMISSIONER MOORE: So moved.

19 COMMISSIONER BISHOP VANN: Second.

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Properly moved and  
21 seconded. Ready for the question? Those in  
22 favor, aye?

23 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed?

25 Motion carries. Thank you, there's refreshments

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25

in the rear.

(Proceedings concluded at  
7:48 p.m.)

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25

CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

STATE OF MICHIGAN )  
 ) SS  
COUNTY OF WAYNE )

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I reported stenographically the foregoing proceedings at the time and place hereinbefore set forth; that thereafter the same was reduced to computer transcription and that this is a full, true, complete and correct transcription of said proceedings.



DALE E. ROSE,  
CSR-0087

---

**A**

---

abandoned 49:21  
 able 15:12  
 aboveboard 39:16  
 absolutely 51:24  
 abused 54:3  
 abuses 30:14  
 AC 58:15 60:11  
 Academy 48:3  
 accept 24:25  
 access 56:19  
 accommodating 7:5  
 accountable 31:1  
 accustomed 24:9  
 acknowledge 24:19  
 acknowledges 37:22  
 Act 37:3 38:24  
 action 29:16 32:10  
 actions 31:13  
 active 5:15 9:8 9:9 53:22  
 activism 33:20 35:16,17 36:5 36:19 54:11  
 activist 35:21 57:9  
 activities 7:8,9 7:10 13:2  
 activity 9:13 16:20 35:16  
 actual 48:23  
 Adam 1:16 20:8  
 adamant 34:10  
 add 5:21  
 addition 12:21 13:17  
 additional 15:17 15:21  
 address 24:11  
 addressing 40:19  
 adhere 46:14  
 administration 45:19  
 administrative 6:23  
 Adnan 27:3  
 adopt 33:3

adoption 38:6  
 advantage 58:20  
 adversary 59:18  
 advocacy 30:5,17  
 advocated 30:23  
 affirmative 29:16  
 African-American 30:9 33:2  
 agencies 54:24  
 agenda 8:10,12 24:11 27:21  
 agent 17:6,8  
 aggrieved 31:13  
 ago 15:10 26:23  
 agree 16:23 51:7  
 agreement 22:10 45:25  
 ahold 50:2  
 aired 56:15  
 Alan 6:24  
 Alicia 7:17  
 alive 11:16  
 allow 19:9 24:11  
 allowed 27:7  
 allowing 48:15 48:16  
 allows 53:6 54:24  
 alongside 29:2  
 alter 24:11  
 Alumni 48:3  
 amendment 43:5  
 America 32:6  
 animal 50:8  
 Ann 58:16  
 announced 58:24  
 announcement 57:10  
 Announcements 39:19  
 Ansley 6:18  
 answer 17:10 20:18 21:2 42:19  
 Anthony 2:3 4:14 4:16 6:1,3,4,9 10:12  
 anthropologist 29:19  
 anybody 41:16 50:2 51:11

Anytime 41:8  
 anyway 42:10,16 57:17 59:12  
 applause 8:1,8 9:25 10:1 14:15 22:25 25:3,7,11,14 25:17,21 26:4 26:9,14,18,21 27:1,5,17,18 28:4,9,15,16 37:12 47:25 50:17 51:21  
 Appointed 2:5,6  
 appreciate 10:14 10:25 28:18 40:12 46:16 60:7  
 appreciated 51:10  
 appreciative 7:10 29:4  
 appropriate 24:8  
 approval 8:22  
 approve 8:12,24  
 approved 35:12  
 approximately 15:11  
 apron 13:23  
 Arab-American 40:2  
 arbiter 31:11  
 Arbor 58:16  
 area 4:3 13:14 16:4 21:15 31:24  
 areas 14:3 18:13 18:19  
 arm 17:17,18  
 armed 53:15  
 army 54:4  
 arrests 27:23  
 Arthur 7:22  
 articulate 32:9  
 asking 42:6 58:4  
 assistant 2:20 4:22 6:23 44:6 56:9  
 assisted 57:2  
 Association 48:3  
 Asst 4:24 5:5,10 9:11 12:4,5

14:16,19,21  
 15:1,7,23  
 16:18 17:9  
 24:5,13 25:4,8  
 25:12,15,18,22  
 26:5,10,15,19  
 26:22 27:2,6  
 27:19 44:8  
 46:9 54:16  
 55:20 58:24  
 assume 45:21  
 astute 29:11  
 AT&T 56:17  
 atmosphere 55:16  
 attend 3:9  
 attendance 5:2 7:14 8:4 9:13 19:18  
 attended 9:10 29:14 31:15 48:4  
 attending 7:24 8:6  
 attorney 6:21  
 attorneys 16:25  
 audience 40:10 58:10,12  
 auditorium 18:8 19:10,13  
 authority 45:23  
 available 23:9  
 Avenue 18:1  
 average 20:18  
 avidly 48:24  
 Award 32:20  
 awards 13:11  
 aware 4:22  
 aye 8:19 9:4,5 33:9 38:9,10 60:22,23

---

**B**

---

B-2 18:19  
 B-4 18:19  
 B&E 21:13  
 B&Es 21:18  
 babies 49:17  
 back 10:16 13:18 14:5,9 19:10 27:11 28:20 34:13 35:20 36:20 37:6

38:17 40:22  
 42:7,24 45:8  
 45:15 46:24  
 47:13,23 48:9  
 48:21 53:4  
 54:14,19 57:13  
**backbone** 28:12  
**background** 55:8  
**bad** 41:19  
**badge** 41:6  
**Baliya** 27:4  
**bankruptcy** 31:7  
 35:8  
**Baptist** 11:4  
**Barren** 52:17,18  
 54:15,21  
**barricaded** 52:10  
 53:16 55:6  
**Barry** 48:21  
 50:13  
**basically** 57:4  
**basis** 20:20 22:6  
 23:23  
**battle** 5:16  
**Bay's** 20:10  
**Bear** 53:5  
**beautiful** 13:17  
**behalf** 24:25  
 27:10 28:5  
**behavior** 29:20  
**believe** 6:12  
 11:21 35:2  
 41:3,3 57:11  
**Bell** 2:4 3:4,7  
 3:14 4:14,18  
 5:1,22,25 6:8  
 7:3,18,25 8:16  
 8:20 9:2,6  
 10:2 12:1  
 14:18 17:3  
 18:5 19:15,22  
 22:14 23:1  
 24:2,7 26:1  
 27:9 28:5,10  
 28:17 33:6,10  
 37:10,13 38:8  
 38:11 39:17  
 40:9,14 42:12  
 42:19,25 43:3  
 43:11,22 44:5  
 44:16,20 45:11  
 45:21 46:1,5

46:17 47:24  
 48:18 50:15  
 51:20,22 52:3  
 56:8 57:19,22  
 58:1 59:5,7,20  
 59:23 60:1,4  
 60:20,24  
**Bernard** 6:19  
 17:22,22  
**Bernice** 57:5,9  
 59:20  
**best** 35:14 58:18  
**better** 11:20  
 32:24 41:19  
 52:23  
**big** 14:13  
**biggest** 22:9  
 23:8  
**bill** 19:3 23:14  
**bills** 23:15  
**bio** 24:22 27:22  
**bios** 27:20  
**Bishop** 2:7 3:11  
 3:14 4:11 8:13  
 9:1 15:25  
 28:24 29:1,6,7  
 33:14 38:7  
 60:19  
**bit** 17:14 54:20  
**black** 29:23 30:8  
 32:4,5  
**blacks** 30:2  
**blame** 42:5  
**blessed** 60:13  
**blessing** 7:6  
**block** 21:16  
**blocks** 16:24  
**blossom** 13:8  
**blue** 41:6  
**board** 1:8 3:6  
 4:15 6:1,5,21  
 8:6 9:9,14,22  
 10:11 11:15  
 24:10 27:10,11  
 27:25 29:5  
 30:25 31:5,8  
 31:16,18,20  
 32:14,16,17  
 34:3 37:20  
 38:4,14 39:8,8  
 39:11,15 45:14  
 46:14 52:17

56:14  
**body** 31:10 40:15  
 40:19 41:1  
 43:14,15,20,24  
 53:18 59:8  
**bond** 15:13  
**bonds** 15:10  
**borders** 20:5  
**born** 49:5  
**bottom** 14:1  
 55:17  
**bought** 48:12  
**bound** 20:2  
**break** 23:10  
 39:23  
**Brenda** 19:17  
**bring** 36:20  
 38:16 53:17  
 58:6  
**bringing** 16:15  
 53:12  
**broadcast** 30:6  
**broke** 53:4  
**broken** 17:17,18  
**Brooks** 2:6 3:24  
 3:25  
**Brother** 11:11  
**brought** 42:7  
 53:15  
**Brown** 6:22 42:14  
 42:14,23 43:1  
 43:7,9,12 44:2  
 44:13,18  
**brutality** 29:25  
 30:11 32:7  
 33:19 45:1  
 48:23 50:24  
 51:6  
**budget** 15:6  
**building** 7:6  
 13:14  
**burglaries** 21:9  
**Burton** 6:10  
**business** 3:9  
 8:21 9:19  
 18:18 28:22  
 30:12 38:13,16  
 39:18  
**businesses** 20:7  
**Butzel** 1:16 7:4  
 7:10 20:8  
**bylaws** 39:3,4

45:10  


---

**C**  


---

**call** 21:7,10  
 22:4  
**called** 12:14  
 32:4 53:5  
 54:23  
**calls** 20:19  
**cameras** 43:14,15  
 43:20,24  
**cancer** 5:16  
**Capt** 5:14 22:21  
 23:4,7  
**captain** 5:13,20  
 19:24 22:15,18  
 22:22 24:2,16  
 24:24 25:5,9  
 25:16,20,24  
 26:7,12,20  
 53:18,19,20  
 57:13  
**captain's** 27:7  
**car** 41:24  
**care** 49:22  
**career** 26:2,24  
**carries** 8:21 9:7  
 33:11 38:12  
 60:25  
**Carter** 3:8 6:13  
**Carvelle** 59:12  
**catch** 49:14  
**celebrate** 60:14  
**celebration**  
 56:23  
**Census** 20:12  
**center** 1:16 7:5  
 12:19 18:9  
 19:14 20:9  
**certainly** 14:6  
 56:2  
**CERTIFICATE** 62:1  
**CERTIFY** 62:8  
**Chair** 3:8 4:17  
 6:4,6,13 8:11  
 8:14,23 9:7,13  
 12:2,6 14:20  
 16:18 17:6  
 19:19 22:17  
 23:4 33:15,16  
 38:15 46:10,19  
 51:24 53:25



54:17  
**Chairman** 7:17  
 17:23 29:8  
 33:3  
**Chaldean** 40:2  
**challenge** 12:25  
**challenged** 31:3  
**challenges** 13:4  
 13:10 22:9  
**chance** 41:9  
**change** 29:20  
 42:17 43:4  
**changed** 10:7  
 43:2,5  
**changes** 30:24  
**channel** 56:19  
**Chapter** 29:23  
**Charles** 17:13  
**Charter** 9:23  
 10:9,17,22  
 30:24 34:17  
 38:25 39:2  
 42:20 43:1,4,5  
**chief** 2:18,20  
 4:22,23,24 5:5  
 5:6,10 6:15,16  
 9:12 10:6 12:4  
 12:5,8 14:16  
 14:19,21 15:1  
 15:7,16,23  
 16:1,18 17:6,9  
 17:9,12,13  
 24:5,13,14,15  
 25:4,8,12,15  
 25:18,22 26:5  
 26:10,15,19,22  
 27:2,6,19  
 43:25 44:6,8  
 46:9 54:16  
 55:20 56:9  
 58:24  
**Chief's** 28:6  
**children** 50:5,10  
**Chips** 20:10  
**Christian** 11:21  
**Christmas** 57:12  
 60:13,13  
**church** 11:4 18:1  
 57:16  
**churches** 18:21  
**circulated** 9:21  
 36:6

**circumstances**  
 55:25  
**citizen** 21:4  
 45:22 55:2  
**citizens** 20:14  
 33:2 35:22  
 37:21,25 40:16  
 48:2 54:22  
 55:9,12,15,18  
**city** 7:21 10:17  
 14:3,12 16:8  
 16:25 18:13  
 19:25 21:24  
 30:24 33:20  
 34:17,18 35:5  
 35:22 36:6,7  
 37:5,21 38:1  
 38:25 39:2  
 43:6 47:20,21  
 53:23  
**City's** 31:7  
**city-wide** 43:21  
**civilian** 34:3,5  
**class** 26:15,16  
**cleaning** 23:24  
 38:21  
**clock** 46:7  
**close** 22:7 23:9  
 23:11 46:22  
 58:2 59:23  
**closed** 57:7  
**closing** 23:4  
**clothing** 49:6  
**CNN** 49:2  
**co-founded** 29:22  
**co-founder** 42:15  
**coalition** 29:24  
 30:10,18 33:19  
 44:25 45:4  
 47:4,7,16  
 48:22 51:13  
**code** 43:17  
**Coleman** 7:19  
 18:9 19:13  
**collectively**  
 47:8  
**college** 49:19  
**color** 32:7  
**Comcast** 20:9  
 56:18  
**come** 7:11 10:3  
 10:25 13:16  
 17:10 18:13,24  
 19:5 23:21,21  
 25:5 28:11  
 39:7,7 45:8  
 46:14 47:8  
 52:4,14 57:15  
 57:25 58:9  
**coming** 4:4 8:8  
 11:4 16:10  
 19:8 23:25  
 40:12 49:17  
 56:20 60:5  
**Comm** 52:18 54:15  
 54:21  
**command** 5:3,8  
 14:24 28:6  
**commander** 52:4  
 52:16,17 53:25  
 55:21 56:9  
**commanding** 52:12  
**commend** 10:11  
 22:18  
**comment** 40:23  
 52:20  
**comments** 11:24  
 14:19 17:3  
**commission** 31:18  
 34:11,23,25  
 35:7 36:20  
 38:22,23 39:4  
 39:5 42:18  
 50:19,21  
**commissioner** 2:5  
 2:6,7,8,9 3:4  
 3:14,20,22,23  
 3:24,24 4:1,2  
 4:7,8,11,12,14  
 4:18 5:1,22,25  
 6:8,9,10,11,11  
 7:3,13,16,17  
 7:25 8:13,15  
 8:16,20,25 9:1  
 9:2,6,15 10:2  
 11:23 12:1  
 14:18,20 15:4  
 15:20,25 17:3  
 17:5,21,23  
 18:5 19:15,19  
 19:22 22:14,17  
 23:1,3 24:1,2  
 24:7 26:1 27:9  
 28:5,10,17,24

29:7 33:5,6,10  
 33:11,13 37:10  
 37:11,13,13,15  
 38:7,8,11,12  
 38:15 39:17  
 40:9 42:12,19  
 42:25 43:3,8  
 43:11,22 44:5  
 44:16,20 45:10  
 45:11,21 46:1  
 46:5,15,17  
 47:24 48:18  
 50:15 51:20,22  
 51:23 52:3  
 53:24 56:8  
 57:11,19,22  
 58:1 59:5,7,20  
 59:23 60:1,4,8  
 60:18,19,20,24  
**commissioners**  
 1:8 2:1 3:6,18  
 6:7 8:7,19 9:5  
 10:19 17:4  
 22:14 27:11  
 30:25 31:9,16  
 31:19,20 32:14  
 32:17 33:9  
 34:6 35:12,18  
 35:23 37:20  
 38:5,10 40:15  
 44:23 45:14  
 49:13 60:11,16  
**Commissioners'**  
 31:6  
**COMMISSIONERS**  
 60:23  
**commitment** 24:4  
 37:23  
**committee** 28:21  
 39:7  
**communicate**  
 23:22  
**communicated**  
 46:24  
**communication**  
 40:10  
**communities**  
 16:16 20:6  
 30:14  
**community** 1:10  
 13:18 14:5  
 16:3,15 21:12

27:12 30:15  
 31:1 32:21,25  
 36:3 37:24  
 38:1 39:25  
 47:9 60:9  
**complaints** 16:4  
**complete** 62:13  
**completed** 13:21  
**completes** 7:2  
**compromise** 43:8  
**computer** 62:11  
**concept** 11:21  
 51:14,15  
**concern** 23:8,10  
**concerning** 47:3  
**concerns** 10:24  
 22:15 40:19  
 45:23  
**concluded** 61:2  
**conclusion** 31:7  
**condition** 17:7  
 17:19  
**congratulate**  
 38:3  
**Congratulations**  
 26:17,25  
**connected** 12:17  
**Connor** 13:14  
**Conrad** 6:11 9:15  
**conscious** 31:17  
**consent** 30:22  
 45:25  
**considered** 34:15  
**consistent** 27:25  
**consistently**  
 21:20  
**conspired** 34:24  
 37:2  
**Constitution**  
 34:16  
**contacts** 21:4  
**contains** 27:22  
**continue** 47:7,17  
**continues** 12:12  
**continuing** 51:12  
**conversation**  
 16:20  
**convey** 46:24  
**coordinate** 57:24  
**copies** 9:20  
**correct** 46:9  
 51:24 54:15,21

62:13  
**council** 11:16  
 16:8 18:25  
 19:17 36:6,7,9  
 37:5 40:2  
 42:21  
**councilman** 7:21  
 19:20  
**counter** 56:11  
**country** 27:16  
 28:3 42:9 52:7  
 53:11 54:12  
**County** 7:17 62:6  
**couple** 10:4 15:7  
 51:8  
**courageous** 32:10  
**course** 16:1,5  
 20:8 33:25  
 36:12  
**court** 6:25 35:3  
 35:4,11  
**coverage** 20:23  
 20:24  
**Craig** 4:23 10:6  
**Crawford** 2:8 4:7  
 4:8 11:23 17:5  
 17:21 23:3  
 24:1 33:11,13  
 37:11 38:15  
 43:8 51:23  
 53:24  
**create** 31:25  
**crime** 12:12,19  
 23:17  
**crisis** 53:9 55:1  
 56:1  
**critic** 31:4  
**Cromwell** 6:18  
**crowded** 19:6  
**CSR-0087** 62:19  
**culminated** 30:20  
**currently** 22:4,5  
**Cushingberry's**  
 7:22

---

**D**

---

**Dale** 6:25 62:18  
**date** 42:21  
**Davis-Drake** 6:15  
**day** 7:8 9:10,23  
 14:9 28:3,8  
 33:23 35:17

41:21  
**days** 33:18 34:9  
**DC** 40:23  
**deal** 47:11 58:17  
**dealing** 49:25  
**dear** 52:1 57:13  
 58:15  
**Dearborn** 20:6  
**debate** 38:18  
 55:21  
**December** 1:12  
 3:2 8:23 13:13  
 18:7 19:12  
 39:20 42:22  
 44:14  
**decent** 32:8  
**decision** 31:5  
 55:22,24  
**Decree** 30:22  
**dedicated** 30:4  
**deemed** 12:17  
**definitely** 11:15  
**degree** 29:12  
**deliberating**  
 16:13  
**deliver** 55:19  
**democracy** 10:16  
**densely** 14:3  
**Dep** 5:6 17:12  
**department** 5:18  
 12:18,23 14:8  
 15:6 25:6,13  
 26:6,23 30:19  
 30:20,21 31:10  
 33:22 34:4  
 37:22 40:24  
 47:22 52:5,24  
 53:14 54:5,13  
 55:6  
**departments**  
 40:21,22 54:2  
**deployed** 20:21  
 54:10  
**Deputy** 17:9,13  
 24:14,15  
**Derrick** 2:5 3:23  
**designated** 3:19  
**designed** 52:25  
 53:8 55:4  
**Detroit** 1:8,18  
 3:1 4:9,13  
 14:8 15:6 16:5

18:11,24 20:1  
 29:23,24 30:8  
 30:10,20,24  
 32:6,13,16,23  
 34:4,18 35:6  
 37:19,21,21  
 38:2,4 43:6  
 44:25 47:20,21  
 48:2,22 49:6,7  
 49:8 52:12,24  
 53:13 55:6  
**Detroit's** 32:1  
 41:10  
**developing** 12:20  
**devotion** 37:24  
**Dewalsche** 6:10  
**different** 48:13  
**dignity** 33:1  
**direction** 12:12  
**disabled** 50:8  
**discussion** 8:17  
 9:3 33:7 38:9  
**discussions** 16:7  
**disenfranchised**  
 30:4,13 34:17  
 35:4  
**dispensaries**  
 16:3 18:2  
**Dist** 2:7,8,9  
**Dist.4** 2:4  
**district** 3:7 4:5  
 4:9,13 7:23,25  
 22:20 35:5  
 46:15 48:16  
**Divers** 7:22  
**Division** 27:3  
 52:19 53:21  
**document** 10:11  
**doing** 17:13 28:7  
 45:2 51:16  
 58:2  
**DOJ** 45:25 46:4  
**dollars** 15:18  
**donations** 58:5  
**door** 55:16  
**doors** 37:2  
**doubt** 35:15  
**downtown** 49:7  
**DPD** 9:9  
**DPRs** 28:12  
**Dr** 7:22 18:6  
**drive-through**

18:20  
**driven** 55:15  
**drum** 32:18  
**Drury** 5:15  
**due** 3:9 33:1  
 56:23  
**Duggan** 10:5  
**Duggan's** 7:23  
**duly** 39:18  
**duties** 9:23 10:8  
 10:21,22

---

**E**

---

**E** 2:20 40:2  
 62:18  
**e-mail** 15:21  
**earlier** 17:14  
**early** 15:3 22:7  
 23:5  
**earn** 13:11  
**earned** 29:12  
**east** 4:9 20:3  
**economic** 30:2  
**Edgar** 2:7 3:11  
 4:12  
**educating** 32:24  
 49:23  
**educational**  
 29:17  
**efforts** 51:12  
**either** 55:17  
**El** 7:20  
**elected** 10:19  
**elections** 10:18  
**electoral** 31:2  
**Elizabeth** 2:6  
 3:25  
**Elvin** 52:18  
**emergency** 31:4  
 34:14 45:8  
**emphasize** 50:22  
 50:25  
**employees** 23:13  
**encompasses** 20:1  
**encourage** 46:12  
**ended** 46:6  
**enforcement**  
 52:25 54:24  
 55:4,8  
**engaged** 33:19  
 35:16 36:3,19  
**engagement** 12:8

**English** 20:10  
**enjoy** 14:11  
**enjoyable** 60:10  
**enlighten** 52:15  
**ensure** 29:16  
 31:11,19  
**entertain** 8:11  
 8:23 60:16  
**entire** 24:22  
 26:24  
**equipment** 40:20  
 40:21 41:24  
 42:6 52:6 54:2  
 54:3,4,4,6,9  
 54:14 56:3,3,4  
 56:4  
**equity** 29:17  
**especially** 30:14  
 48:15  
**established** 22:2  
**establishing**  
 32:19  
**establishments**  
 16:6,14  
**Eva** 6:10  
**Evans** 24:18,23  
**evening** 1:10 3:4  
 4:1,24 6:7  
 12:5 17:12  
 19:24 37:16  
 40:16 42:15  
 44:22 46:24  
 48:19 50:18  
 56:16  
**eventually** 29:12  
**everybody** 5:11  
 51:7 58:14  
**exactly** 15:5  
 49:25  
**excited** 12:13  
 14:4,7  
**excuse** 40:25  
**excused** 6:7  
**execution** 17:15  
**exemplary** 37:24  
**exercise** 31:21  
**expanding** 30:24  
**expect** 17:1  
**experiment** 43:17  
**extract** 55:18  
**extreme** 4:22  
**extremely** 32:9

51:9

---

**F**

---

**facility** 7:7  
 13:17 16:24  
**fact** 16:19 34:25  
 39:21 54:18  
**facts** 15:18  
**fair** 51:6  
**fairly** 47:21  
**fairness** 31:11  
**family** 3:9 5:23  
 46:25 49:7  
**far** 21:2 22:10  
 45:13 48:11  
**favor** 8:18 9:4  
 33:8 38:9  
 60:22  
**FBI** 17:6  
**February** 56:25  
**federal** 30:21,22  
**feel** 49:3  
**feet** 18:20 24:9  
 24:10  
**fellow** 40:16  
**field** 7:8  
**fight** 35:3 36:19  
**fighter** 11:14  
**final** 31:10  
**find** 37:3  
**finding** 44:11  
**fine** 17:14,20  
 26:11  
**finest** 41:10  
**finish** 57:9  
**fire** 19:9  
**first** 8:4,7 9:22  
 18:17 48:4  
 60:9  
**fitness** 12:24,25  
**Fitzgerald** 17:10  
 17:12,13 24:15  
**five** 20:15 49:5  
**focus** 30:9  
**focused** 31:20  
**following** 20:18  
 56:16  
**force** 32:25  
 41:13  
**foregoing** 62:9  
**forget** 36:15  
**forgive** 34:22,23

36:13,14,22  
 37:6  
**forth** 24:10  
 62:10  
**forum** 31:12  
 45:16  
**forums** 56:9  
**forward** 3:10  
 7:12 9:18 10:3  
 13:6,7 28:11  
 28:21 51:11  
 52:4 57:4  
**fought** 32:5  
 35:10 59:18,18  
**foundation** 56:13  
**founded** 29:24  
 33:18  
**four** 20:15 29:12  
**frame** 40:12  
**free** 48:20  
**freedom** 11:14  
**freedoms** 14:12  
**Friday** 56:15,16  
 58:11  
**friends** 51:3  
**front** 6:20 24:15  
**fulfill** 10:20  
 44:10  
**full** 9:23 34:11  
 39:7,8 42:23  
 62:12  
**fund** 15:13 48:10  
**funding** 15:9,13  
**funeral** 5:17  
 11:2 59:13  
**further** 32:22

---

**G**

---

**gain** 54:24  
**gal** 28:19  
**gangs** 31:24  
**Garza** 6:10  
**gas** 12:15,17  
 22:3,7 23:5  
**generous** 37:22  
**gentle** 32:8  
**gentleman** 53:7  
**gentlemen** 48:20  
**George** 2:3 6:1,4  
 7:21 10:12  
**get-together**  
 48:5

**getting** 49:9  
**give** 7:4,25 8:8  
 14:13 27:14,16  
 28:10,12,13  
 37:6 40:10  
 58:5,20  
**given** 3:13 54:6  
**giving** 55:23  
**glad** 11:15 27:10  
 48:14,17  
**go** 3:10 13:7  
 14:9 19:11  
 21:15 24:10  
 27:19 34:13  
 35:3,11,14  
 41:20 42:7  
 48:24 57:4  
 58:16  
**God-given** 30:4  
**goes** 47:4,9  
 52:14  
**going** 3:11,15,16  
 3:20 10:10,10  
 10:14 11:3,6  
 11:18 12:15  
 13:8,10,16,22  
 16:8 18:6 19:6  
 24:19,19,21  
 28:23 36:9  
 39:25 40:5,22  
 41:2,18 42:4,7  
 44:4,8 46:3  
 49:16 52:3  
 56:15,24 57:12  
 57:14,16,20  
 58:3,14 59:10  
 59:13  
**good** 3:4 4:1,24  
 11:20 12:5,22  
 17:12 19:24  
 20:23,24 22:15  
 23:20 40:15  
 44:22 47:13  
 48:19 50:18  
 58:23 59:6,17  
 60:6  
**gotten** 27:24  
**government** 30:12  
 54:22  
**Governor** 34:22  
 34:22 37:1  
**graduated** 29:15

**grand** 13:12,23  
 13:25  
**granted** 14:13  
**great** 7:7 13:17  
 14:12 22:20  
 26:16 58:2,3  
**green** 12:14,16  
**Greenfield** 20:3  
**Greeno** 26:13  
**grew** 49:5  
**group** 33:18  
**growing** 50:10  
**grown** 48:8  
**guess** 4:20 9:19  
 19:23 34:12  
 38:19 43:17  
 52:8 54:17  
**gun** 41:16  
**gunman** 53:16  
 55:6  
**gunmen** 52:10  
**guns** 27:23  
**guys** 22:20 41:19  
 50:9

---

**H**

---

**half** 11:9  
**hand** 10:22 14:13  
**handle** 53:22  
**handling** 59:14  
**Hanson** 6:25  
**happened** 47:11  
**happening** 43:25  
**happy** 22:21 29:3  
 45:5 47:12  
 48:6  
**hard** 24:20 27:13  
**hardest** 28:2  
**harms** 55:19  
**Harold** 22:18  
**hat** 41:8,10  
**hate** 59:11  
**head** 42:5  
**Headquarters**  
 39:21  
**healthy** 9:11  
**hear** 18:25  
**heard** 14:21  
 40:23  
**hearing** 5:12  
 13:6 16:10  
 18:7,25 19:3,5

52:16  
**heart** 5:19 42:6  
 47:13 57:17,17  
**heated** 38:18  
**heavy** 5:19 8:10  
 27:21  
**held** 5:17 34:7  
 52:1 57:13,14  
**help** 21:17 41:12  
 50:7 53:8  
 58:13  
**helped** 57:1  
**helping** 48:12  
 52:11 57:23  
**Henderson** 18:8  
 19:13  
**hereinbefore**  
 62:10  
**high** 20:14,16  
 28:20 49:18,18  
 55:1  
**highest** 16:4  
 38:2  
**Hispanics** 30:3  
**historic** 9:22  
 11:3  
**history** 11:11  
 34:14  
**holiday** 48:5  
 56:23 59:6  
 60:14  
**holidays** 9:17  
**home** 59:13  
**home-going** 47:1  
**homeless** 58:7  
**honor** 14:7 27:12  
 28:23 29:9  
 32:19  
**honorable** 40:15  
**honoring** 37:18  
**honors** 29:6  
**hope** 45:6 57:13  
 60:9  
**hopefully** 40:3  
 44:17  
**host** 4:3 30:7  
**hot** 52:7 55:16  
**hours** 22:8 49:2  
**house** 5:4 19:21  
 52:9 54:13  
 59:4  
**households** 49:20

**houses** 49:21  
**human** 29:20  
 31:22  
**humanity** 33:2  
**hundreds** 49:21  
**Hunter** 25:2,5

---

**I**

---

**identified** 15:16  
**identifiers**  
 54:18  
**II** 7:24  
**II's** 7:19  
**illegal** 45:7  
**implemented** 32:1  
 42:21 51:18  
**importance** 30:13  
**important** 12:23  
 18:10,21  
**improving** 37:25  
**in-between** 20:24  
 21:1  
**incident** 21:6  
**inclined** 39:12  
**include** 6:14  
 29:5 51:15  
**includes** 51:13  
**incur** 23:16  
**industrial** 18:19  
**industry** 52:24  
 55:8  
**information** 13:6  
 17:24 18:3  
 55:23 56:7,11  
 56:12  
**informed** 55:24  
 56:10  
**initiating** 30:18  
**initiative** 12:15  
 12:23 31:25  
**initiatives**  
 32:13  
**injured** 41:25  
**institutions**  
 53:11  
**intention** 39:15  
**interest** 27:20  
**interested** 51:14  
**introduce** 3:18  
 3:20 4:19,20  
 5:2,6 6:2,5  
 7:13 19:16

**INTRODUCED** 5:8  
**introduction**  
 4:21  
**introductions**  
 7:2  
**investigation**  
 30:19  
**investigations**  
 45:3  
**investigator**  
 6:16,17,18  
 44:24,25  
**Invite** 13:16  
**INVOCATION** 3:13  
**involve** 12:15  
**involved** 13:5  
 49:9 50:14  
**involves** 21:8  
**involving** 13:3  
**Irma** 18:8 19:12  
**Ironically** 15:8  
**ISIL** 49:2  
**issue** 16:21  
 20:19 45:12,15  
 45:18 49:15  
 52:4,7  
**issues** 23:24  
 27:15 45:8  
 52:14  
**item** 8:21 9:18  
 12:3  
**IVERSON** 18:6

**J**

**James** 2:20 4:22  
**Jana** 26:13  
**January** 40:1  
 56:25  
**Jay** 19:20  
**Jeffries** 29:11  
**Jeremy** 25:16  
**job** 41:4 46:16  
 58:2,3  
**Johnson** 7:20  
**join** 24:15  
**joined** 25:6,13  
 26:5,23  
**joining** 25:23  
**Jones'** 19:17  
**Journal** 30:8  
**Joy** 19:20  
**Jr** 6:11

**junior** 20:16  
 49:18  
**justice** 29:9  
 30:2,19 31:22  
 32:13,18,20  
 51:16 54:13

**K**

**Katherine** 26:20  
**keeping** 12:21  
 56:5,5  
**Kenneth** 46:20  
**Kennus** 7:20  
**Kevyn** 34:24 37:2  
 43:9  
**kick** 14:23 15:3  
**kids** 50:14  
**Kimberly** 50:20  
**kind** 32:11 38:18  
 38:21 41:23  
 60:14  
**kinds** 16:15  
**kinks** 22:12  
**knew** 51:9  
**know** 10:17 11:3  
 11:11,12 15:4  
 15:18 16:7,24  
 34:7,19,20  
 35:13 37:8  
 38:20,20 40:23  
 43:7,21 44:2  
 47:1,4,12  
 49:10 50:8  
 52:6 53:7  
 57:18 58:10,11  
 58:14,22 59:16  
**known** 33:16,17  
 35:1  
**knows** 53:18  
**kudos** 58:21  
**Kurek** 25:19  
**Kyriacou** 22:23

**L**

**lack** 41:19  
**Lahser** 13:24,24  
**lastly** 22:1  
 51:11  
**late** 49:13  
**lately** 49:1  
**launch** 44:9  
**launched** 12:22

**launching** 12:14  
**law** 52:25 54:24  
 55:4,8  
**Leach** 5:20  
**lead** 13:5  
**leaders** 30:12  
**leadership** 22:19  
 28:14  
**leading** 21:3,22  
 21:24  
**learn** 49:3  
**leave** 58:20  
**leaving** 58:16  
**left** 3:16 4:23  
**legacy** 32:19  
**legislature**  
 16:21  
**leisure** 10:13,24  
 19:25  
**Leland's** 19:20  
**let's** 5:22 7:25  
 14:13 27:16  
 28:13  
**letting** 42:10  
**LeValley** 5:7  
 24:14  
**level** 13:9  
**Lewis** 19:20  
**license** 18:18  
**life** 30:4 37:25  
 50:5 51:25  
**lift** 3:10 9:19  
 11:18  
**light** 12:15  
 23:14  
**lights** 12:16  
**liken** 34:1  
**limit** 31:5  
**Linda** 6:19 17:22  
 19:17  
**line** 14:11  
**Lisa** 3:8 6:13  
**listed** 21:19  
 40:3  
**listen** 52:19  
**listening** 50:12  
**literally** 14:1  
 33:23 50:3  
**litigation** 35:14  
**little** 5:13 11:3  
 17:14 49:13  
 54:20

**Livernois** 20:4  
**lives** 14:11 32:4  
 32:5  
**lobbied** 10:15  
**located** 19:25  
**location** 13:23  
**locations** 20:7  
**long** 10:3 13:13  
 33:17 44:4  
**longest** 30:8  
**look** 13:5 17:23  
 51:11 52:10  
 55:9 56:18  
**looking** 10:2  
 56:22  
**looks** 55:2  
**Lord** 11:20  
**lose** 58:14  
**losing** 58:23  
**lost** 5:16 11:1  
 35:21 50:11  
**lot** 13:2,6 14:21  
 17:2 21:14  
 23:24 47:3  
 49:1,3 51:1,4  
 53:10 54:9  
**love** 17:25 42:2  
 49:8,8 57:15  
 60:1,3  
**lowest** 41:14  
**LYNDON** 1:14

**M**

**ma'am** 18:5 42:13  
 42:25 43:3,23  
 44:16,20 46:17  
 48:18 51:20  
**machine** 53:2  
 55:3,10  
**Mack** 18:1 57:17  
**major** 32:18  
**making** 31:1  
**MaKissey** 48:1  
**Maleek** 48:24  
**Mallett** 6:11  
 9:15,15  
**man** 32:9,23 50:2  
 57:9 58:12,23  
 59:9  
**manager** 7:23 8:1  
 34:15 45:8  
**manager's** 31:4

mandated 9:23  
 10:9 42:20  
**manner** 48:25  
**March** 46:10  
**marijuana** 16:2  
 18:2,4,7  
**marshals** 19:9  
**Mary** 48:1  
**material** 39:12  
 40:4  
**matter** 10:7 32:4  
**matters** 30:13  
 31:18  
**Matthew** 25:19  
**mauled** 59:10  
**Mayor** 7:23 10:5  
 16:9 43:24  
**McDonald's** 57:18  
**McKISSEY** 48:1  
**McNichols** 20:2  
**mean** 28:25 40:25  
 41:15 42:2  
 47:16 56:17  
**media** 11:13,14  
 30:6  
**medical** 16:2  
 18:7  
**meeting** 1:10 3:5  
 8:5,7,12 22:5  
 27:12 31:16  
 37:4 39:19,22  
 39:25 56:16  
 60:9,10  
**meetings** 22:9  
 23:21,22 31:19  
 33:25 36:1,2  
 37:3 38:24  
**Meijer** 13:23  
**member** 5:15  
**members** 5:8 6:14  
 36:7,9 37:4  
**memory** 47:18  
**men** 14:7 28:2  
 49:19  
**mentioned** 6:13  
 16:9  
**mentoring** 50:3,4  
**merit** 38:2  
**met** 33:25 35:18  
**methodology** 49:3  
**Metro** 27:3  
**Metropolitan**

52:18 53:21  
**mic** 10:25 11:7  
 11:10 40:7,13  
 41:9  
**Michigan** 1:18  
 3:1 29:15  
 35:19,22,24  
 36:5,18 62:4  
**middle** 20:15  
**midnights** 23:12  
**Mile** 13:25 40:3  
**miles** 20:1  
**militarization**  
 52:5 54:5  
**militarized**  
 40:24 41:2  
 53:12  
**military** 40:20  
 41:1,17 52:20  
 53:1 56:4  
**million** 15:12,17  
 15:19,22  
**mind** 60:14  
**mindset** 53:2  
**mine** 59:18  
**Minister** 48:24  
**minorities** 30:3  
 32:5  
**minutes** 8:22  
 11:8 21:23  
 37:4 40:11,18  
**misconstrued**  
 51:2  
**missed** 57:6  
**moment** 5:22,24  
 9:11 40:6,8  
**money** 15:5,14  
 23:12 41:4  
 58:5  
**monitoring** 46:2  
 46:6  
**months** 10:4 46:7  
**Moore** 2:9 4:1,2  
 7:13,16 8:15  
 8:25 14:20  
 15:4,20 19:19  
 22:17 33:5  
 37:13,15 38:12  
 60:18  
**Moreland** 25:16  
**morning** 11:19  
 56:15

**Morris** 44:22,23  
 45:17,24 46:4  
 46:12  
**mother** 29:11  
 57:5 59:20  
**motion** 8:11,21  
 8:24 9:7 33:11  
 35:2,11 38:11  
 60:17,25  
**move** 9:18 19:16  
 25:1 28:20  
 33:3 36:25  
 38:6  
**moved** 8:13,17,25  
 9:3 33:7 38:8  
 60:18,20  
**Muffins** 20:11  
**Mumford** 49:6  
**Municipal** 19:13  
**murders** 48:25  
**mute** 41:17

**N**

**name** 3:22 4:2,7  
 4:11 40:11,16  
 42:14 44:23  
 46:20 48:1,21  
 48:23 50:12,19  
**necessary** 55:23  
**need** 19:4 41:11  
 58:19 59:2  
**needs** 4:20 34:13  
 35:1 41:16  
 47:19 58:7  
**negative** 56:12  
**negotiating**  
 13:20  
**negotiations**  
 13:20 22:5  
**neighborhood**  
 51:17  
**neighborhoods**  
 32:2  
**neighboring** 20:6  
**neighbors** 51:16  
**never** 35:21  
 36:15,16,16  
 53:16  
**new** 12:13 13:3  
 13:15 16:17  
 28:22 44:11  
**newly** 3:19

**news** 12:22  
**newsletter** 9:20  
 9:21 29:3  
**nice** 29:4  
**Nick** 22:23  
**Nigel** 25:9  
**night** 8:10 9:22  
 48:5  
**non-discrimin...**  
 31:21 32:25  
**north** 20:2  
**Northwest** 4:13  
 16:4  
**notable** 20:6  
**note** 6:6  
**noted** 33:21  
 39:18  
**November** 25:6  
**NPOs** 21:13,15  
**number** 5:20  
 15:10 21:3,18  
 27:23,23,24  
 33:15,17  
**numerous** 32:13  
 39:1

**O**

**o'clock** 11:5  
 19:7,8 57:23  
**obviously** 5:18  
**occasion** 29:3  
**occurred** 49:1  
**office** 2:18 6:16  
 6:18 7:19,22  
 7:23 19:18,21  
 28:6  
**officer** 5:15,23  
 24:18,23 25:2  
 25:5,8,12,16  
 25:19,22,25  
 26:6,13,16,20  
 26:22 27:3  
 28:1 44:24  
 52:12  
**officers** 5:3,3  
 12:25 13:1,4  
 13:10 14:22,25  
 21:10 24:8,12  
 24:20,22 26:11  
 27:6,12,14,22  
 41:13,25 47:21  
 49:12 51:4

55:18 56:2,6  
60:6  
**offices** 55:14  
**officials** 7:14  
**okay** 5:10,21  
19:23 24:2  
44:14 45:24  
49:10 50:11  
60:4  
**old** 14:2 15:9  
38:13,16 39:18  
**once** 47:23 60:4  
**ones** 36:12  
**ongoing** 24:4  
**online** 10:14  
**open** 10:25 11:7  
11:10 37:3  
38:24 40:6  
55:17  
**opening** 13:12  
16:24  
**operating** 5:18  
**operations** 31:12  
**opinion** 55:24  
**opportunity**  
10:20 11:8  
14:4 29:1  
52:19 56:19  
57:6  
**opposed** 8:20 9:6  
33:10 38:11  
60:24  
**oral** 40:9  
**order** 34:15  
43:20 52:8  
**orders** 44:10  
**organization**  
32:4 48:8,11  
48:13,23  
**organizations**  
20:7  
**Orr** 34:24 37:2  
43:9 45:16  
**outlined** 10:9  
**outside** 18:13  
19:12 21:4  
**outspoken** 31:4  
**overdue** 13:13  
**oversight** 30:21  
31:9 34:1,2,4  
34:6

**P**

**p.m** 3:3 61:3  
**pack** 17:24  
**page** 17:24 18:3  
**Pamela** 6:15  
**Panther** 29:23  
**park** 27:7  
**parking** 27:7  
**part** 15:3,8  
18:16,17,18  
35:24 36:23  
40:17  
**participate** 13:2  
**participating**  
35:24  
**particular** 18:24  
21:15,25  
**particularly**  
33:20  
**party** 29:23  
57:12  
**patrols** 23:9  
**pay** 14:21,22,24  
23:14,15  
**pays** 32:17  
**peace** 29:20  
31:25 51:13,25  
**peaceful** 48:25  
53:13,17 54:8  
**people** 10:15  
32:7 36:3  
38:20 43:6  
45:7 47:19  
49:8 50:3,8  
51:1,9 52:11  
58:17  
**percent** 22:10  
45:1,6  
**period** 10:5 46:2  
46:6  
**person** 11:14  
**personally** 36:25  
41:15  
**persons** 18:12  
31:13  
**petitions** 36:6  
**photo** 29:5  
**physical** 47:5,15  
**Pickens** 37:14,16  
37:18,23 38:4  
**picture** 28:24

29:4  
**pictures** 28:25  
**pinned** 55:15  
**place** 10:18  
11:20 18:23  
21:6,9,14  
29:16 32:24  
62:10  
**places** 15:8  
**planet** 47:6  
**Platoon** 21:22  
**please** 3:19 6:2  
7:18 8:5 17:11  
24:16,17 25:10  
25:20 26:8  
37:14 40:10  
53:19  
**pleased** 9:14  
**PM** 1:12 13:13  
18:8 19:12  
39:20 56:16  
**podium** 34:7  
**point** 17:2 39:14  
41:17  
**police** 1:8 3:6  
8:6 12:18,23  
13:18 14:4,8  
14:22 15:6,16  
21:5 24:18  
25:2,6,8,13,16  
25:19,24 26:6  
26:11,12,16,20  
27:3,11 29:25  
30:11,14,20,21  
30:25 31:5,9  
31:10,12,13,16  
31:19,20,21  
32:6,14,16,21  
32:24 33:19,22  
34:4 37:20,22  
38:4 40:21,24  
41:13,17,25  
43:25 44:24  
45:1,9,14 48:3  
48:6,11 49:12  
50:23,23 51:3  
51:3,4,5,5  
52:5,24 53:11  
53:13 54:5  
55:6 56:4 59:3  
**POLICE'S** 2:18  
**policies** 42:18

**policing** 51:17  
51:17  
**political** 30:11  
**poor** 30:3  
**populated** 14:3  
**population** 20:13  
**positive** 12:11  
22:2  
**possibly** 17:17  
**postpone** 56:25  
**Potato** 20:10  
**power** 30:14  
31:22 34:11,22  
34:24 35:7,20  
36:8,13,15,21  
37:5 45:15  
**powerful** 30:5  
**powers** 10:16  
31:6 42:17,24  
45:5 47:13  
**prayed** 3:17  
**prayer** 3:12 11:2  
11:6,10  
**precinct** 4:5  
5:13,16 13:12  
13:15,22 14:2  
15:9,12,14  
19:16,23,25  
20:5,8,13,17  
20:21 21:3,7  
21:20,25 22:16  
22:21,22,23  
23:19 24:4,17  
24:24 25:1,5  
25:10,15,18,19  
25:24 26:3,6,7  
26:12,19,24  
40:1 57:14  
**prepared** 45:12  
**present** 6:14  
**presentation**  
5:14 22:13  
24:6,16  
**president** 19:17  
42:2 48:2 52:9  
52:21 54:1,13  
55:22  
**pressure** 54:12  
**pretty** 9:11  
**prevailed** 35:15  
**previous** 12:8  
**Price** 26:20,22

**prices** 48:13  
**principled** 51:9  
 51:10  
**print** 30:6  
**prior** 19:3 23:25  
**privileged** 28:22  
**probably** 22:8  
 37:9 45:16  
 49:11  
**probing** 32:9  
**problem** 15:24  
 44:13  
**problems** 16:15  
 53:10  
**procedure** 19:2  
 39:6  
**proceedings** 6:24  
 61:2 62:9,14  
**process** 12:19  
 13:19,21 22:11  
 31:2 44:1,11  
 46:2,13  
**producer** 30:7  
**program** 12:14,24  
 13:3,8 54:23  
 54:23 56:14  
**programming**  
 13:21  
**programs** 56:14  
**progress** 16:12  
 16:19  
**project** 44:9  
**projects** 29:11  
 52:1  
**proliferating**  
 16:14  
**proliferation**  
 16:2,5  
**promoted** 8:2  
**proper** 24:12  
 45:23  
**properly** 8:16  
 9:2 33:6 38:8  
 45:12,20 60:20  
**protect** 41:7  
**protection** 53:1  
 53:7 54:25  
 55:11,12  
**protest** 53:17  
**protests** 53:13  
 53:22 54:9,12  
**protocol** 49:11

**proud** 22:24  
 58:12  
**public** 18:7  
 39:21 56:19  
 58:22  
**purchase** 53:5  
**purpose** 56:5  
**purposes** 55:5  
**put** 14:4,10  
 35:10 41:6  
 59:1  
**puts** 14:1  
**putting** 10:12

---

**Q**

**quality** 37:25  
**quarter** 24:12,20  
 27:8  
**quest** 30:1  
**question** 43:13  
 43:19 45:6  
 60:21  
**questionable**  
 47:11  
**questions** 10:24  
 14:19 22:15  
 23:2 24:3  
**quick** 49:14  
**Quinn** 6:24  
**quite** 5:3 10:15  
 33:24 34:8,8  
**quorum** 4:15,17

---

**R**

**R** 2:9  
**rain** 14:10  
**raised** 10:21  
 29:10 31:18  
**raiser** 48:10  
**raises** 14:22,22  
 14:24 15:15  
**rally** 17:25  
**ram** 17:17  
**ran** 42:3  
**ratified** 15:2  
**Ray** 7:23 8:1  
**Ray's** 20:10  
**re-acquainted**  
 7:9  
**reaching** 50:10  
**read** 10:13,23  
 12:3 24:21

37:17 38:24,25  
 39:3  
**reading** 39:2  
**ready** 36:25  
 60:21  
**real** 34:14  
**realize** 14:24  
 17:16  
**really** 8:4 10:3  
 13:24 17:2  
 18:23 28:22  
 29:3 34:13  
 35:20,24 36:2  
 49:4,22 52:13  
 57:1 58:19  
**realtime** 12:18  
**rear** 61:1  
**reason** 35:7  
 38:16 54:10  
**recall** 36:9  
 52:21  
**recalled** 54:1  
**receive** 42:23  
**receiving** 14:22  
 32:11  
**receptive** 23:6,7  
**recognition**  
 27:14 28:11  
 32:11 57:3  
 60:7  
**recognize** 57:1  
 60:6  
**recognizes** 32:17  
**recognizing** 57:2  
**reconcile** 34:21  
**reconciliation**  
 29:21 34:19  
 36:14,24 37:9  
**reconvening**  
 39:24  
**record** 6:4 39:5  
**recording** 6:24  
**recourse** 45:22  
**recovering** 17:19  
**Recreation** 20:9  
**RECREATIONAL**  
 1:16  
**redress** 31:14  
**reduced** 23:17  
 62:11  
**reducing** 21:18  
**Reed** 46:19,20

**referred** 29:18  
**refresh** 39:1  
**refresher** 38:25  
**refreshments**  
 60:25  
**regard** 16:1,11  
**regards** 38:2  
 57:12 59:3  
**Reginald** 2:8 4:8  
**regrets** 12:10  
**regular** 21:4  
 22:6 23:23  
**reinstated** 9:24  
**relates** 52:20  
**relations** 21:13  
 32:21  
**relationship**  
 22:3 23:20  
**remaining** 15:18  
**remarks** 59:8  
**remembered** 32:23  
**remiss** 12:6  
**reply** 43:23  
**report** 14:17  
 43:16  
**reported** 62:8  
**REPORTER** 62:1  
**reporting** 6:25  
 9:12  
**reports** 12:11  
 28:21  
**Representative**  
 7:19  
**represented** 9:14  
**representing**  
 2:18 4:4,23  
**research** 38:23  
 42:15  
**reserve** 11:24  
**reserves** 28:13  
**reservists** 28:11  
 28:14  
**residents** 18:11  
 18:24 19:5  
 21:15 30:15  
**resolution** 12:3  
 17:1 29:8 33:4  
 37:14,18 46:21  
 50:21  
**resolved** 16:21  
 32:16 37:19  
**respect** 33:1



51:4  
**respectful** 40:11  
**respond** 52:15  
**response** 21:21  
 21:22,23 53:21  
**responsibilities**  
 9:24 10:8,21  
 10:23  
**restorative**  
 51:15  
**restore** 36:8,20  
**restored** 34:11  
 45:6  
**restrictions**  
 18:15,22 19:4  
**result** 30:16  
**retired** 44:24  
**retrofitted**  
 13:15  
**returned** 53:4  
**Rev** 3:17  
**revealed** 15:9  
**revert** 47:22  
**reward** 32:11  
**rewarding** 56:21  
**Ricardo** 2:9 4:2  
**Richard** 6:12  
**right** 3:17 10:22  
 12:12 13:25  
 21:2,21 22:10  
 28:19 32:12  
 44:6 46:8  
 49:13 56:7  
 59:4  
**rights** 31:22  
**rise** 54:11  
**Rivard** 57:19,20  
**River** 13:24,25  
**Road** 40:3  
**Robert** 6:22  
**Robinson** 25:25  
**Rochon** 5:14  
 19:24 22:18  
 23:4,7  
**Rock** 11:3  
**roll** 41:24  
**Ron** 11:1,2,7,11  
 28:23 29:2,9  
 29:10,14,18,22  
 30:1,11,16,23  
 31:3,8,15,23  
 32:4,8,18,20

32:22 33:16,17  
 33:23 34:1,1,5  
 34:7,9,20  
 35:10,15 36:18  
 37:8 40:7,18  
 45:2 46:22,22  
 47:5,15 50:22  
 50:22 51:24  
 59:16  
**room** 8:11 14:9  
 28:1 48:10  
 49:17  
**Rose** 6:25 62:18  
**Ross** 48:19,21  
 50:13,16  
**rotating** 20:23  
**round** 8:1,8 9:25  
 27:16 28:14  
**running** 30:8  
**runs** 21:2,5  
**rust** 42:8

---

**S**

---

**Sacred** 57:17,17  
**safe** 56:5,6  
 60:13  
**safety** 39:21  
 55:19  
**Sanders** 2:5 3:22  
 3:23 60:8  
**Sandra** 37:14,18  
 37:23 38:4  
 46:25  
**satisfied** 46:13  
**Saturday** 11:4,19  
 47:2 59:10,12  
**savant** 32:9  
**saying** 18:23  
 45:17 48:8  
**scheduled** 46:10  
**school** 28:20  
 49:18,20  
**schools** 18:20  
 20:14,15,16  
**Scott** 11:1,11  
 28:23 29:2,9  
 29:10,14,18,22  
 30:1,11,23  
 31:3,8,15,23  
 32:4,8,18,20  
 32:22 33:12,16  
 33:17,23 36:18

40:7 50:22  
**Scott's** 30:16  
**scurrilous** 43:10  
**season** 56:24  
 60:15  
**seated** 6:19,23  
 19:11  
**second** 18:15,18  
 60:19  
**seconded** 60:21  
**Secretary** 2:3  
 4:15,16 6:1,3  
 6:5,9,20 10:12  
 29:5  
**secured** 15:10,11  
**see** 8:10 12:16  
 14:9 27:13  
 35:19 36:9  
 41:1 45:5 48:6  
 48:7 50:7  
 52:13 55:5,7  
 58:13 59:14  
 60:12  
**seeing** 53:10  
**seek** 31:13  
**sell** 48:17  
**selling** 48:10  
**Senator** 7:20  
**send** 40:22  
**sends** 12:9  
**sensitive** 32:10  
**series** 20:22  
**serve** 41:7  
**service** 7:1  
 22:20 23:18,19  
 37:24 47:1  
 59:10 60:7  
**services** 5:17  
 59:12  
**set** 62:10  
**seven** 11:9 40:2  
 40:17  
**Sgt** 6:24 22:19  
**Shabaz** 48:24  
**Sharobi** 50:18,20  
**Shelby** 6:12  
**shelters** 50:8  
**shifts** 20:22,24  
 20:25 21:1  
**shirt** 48:12  
**shirts** 48:9,17  
**shooter** 55:14

**shooters** 53:22  
**shooting** 21:9  
**shootout** 41:22  
**shot** 17:6,16  
**shows** 30:9  
**shut** 23:16,18  
**side** 4:9 55:17  
**sides** 51:7  
**sign** 13:1 36:8  
**signed** 36:12  
 37:5,6 42:20  
**silence** 5:23,24  
 40:6,8  
**silent** 11:2,6,10  
**simply** 55:23  
**single** 29:11  
 35:17  
**sir** 4:18 6:8 7:2  
 7:3 11:23 12:1  
 14:18 17:5  
 23:3 33:13,16  
 37:15 39:16,17  
 46:18 47:24  
 50:15 51:23  
 53:24  
**sit** 39:14 42:8  
**situation** 55:13  
 56:1 59:3  
**situations** 53:9  
 53:16 55:1  
**Six** 13:25  
**sleet** 14:10  
**slight** 27:22  
**smiled** 48:20  
**Smith** 57:8,9,20  
 57:23 58:4  
 59:1,6,9,22,25  
 60:3  
**snow** 14:10  
**Snyder** 37:1  
**social** 29:20  
 30:2  
**Solomon** 7:24 8:1  
**somebody** 50:6  
**somewhat** 56:11  
**soon** 17:1  
**sorry** 7:20 17:2  
**sort** 49:14  
**sought** 35:16  
**south** 20:2  
**space** 27:7  
**speak** 11:8 33:12

35:20 42:11  
**speaking** 12:2,2  
 37:20 38:22  
 57:7  
**specific** 54:17  
**specifically** 4:5  
**spend** 10:10  
**spent** 26:23  
**spirit** 11:18  
 17:25 37:23  
 47:18  
**spoke** 16:8 18:14  
 31:17 59:21  
**spokesman** 30:10  
**square** 20:1  
**SS** 62:5  
**stable** 17:19  
**staff** 5:8 6:2,6  
 6:14 7:11 10:5  
 10:6 28:6  
**stand** 7:15,18  
 8:5 19:10 40:6  
 41:9 53:19  
**standard** 52:24  
 55:9  
**standing** 24:8,9  
 26:1 28:21  
 29:1 40:8  
**start** 3:16 5:6  
 44:1 50:3,10  
 57:7  
**started** 21:12  
 26:2 32:1 44:3  
**starting** 3:15  
**State** 7:18 34:16  
 62:4  
**stated** 9:7,15,16  
 39:5  
**statement** 38:19  
 38:21  
**States** 52:9  
**statesman** 31:17  
**stations** 12:16  
 12:17 22:3,7  
 23:5,10,18,19  
**stay** 31:20  
**stellar** 46:15  
**stenographically**  
 62:9  
**Steven** 26:7  
**stood** 34:7 43:24  
**stop** 31:24 32:6

50:12  
**store** 49:6  
**street** 1:14 14:1  
 41:20  
**streets** 27:24  
 30:17 31:23  
 50:1  
**strengthening**  
 30:25  
**strongly** 43:14  
**students** 49:19  
**stuff** 47:4 54:5  
**submit** 50:1  
**subsequent** 16:11  
**success** 58:18  
**successful** 30:18  
 43:18  
**successfully**  
 32:1  
**suggest** 19:7  
**suggestion** 39:10  
**suited** 35:14  
**summer** 7:8  
**sundown** 14:10  
**sunup** 14:10  
**Supervising** 6:17  
**supervisor** 20:25  
**support** 8:15  
 10:14 28:13  
 33:5 43:14  
 48:7  
**supported** 8:17  
 9:1,3 11:15  
 33:7 38:7,9  
 44:2  
**supporting** 32:12  
**supposed** 39:6,8  
**supposedly** 37:6  
**sure** 9:11 39:11  
 46:23 47:9,19  
 56:2,6,10  
**surgery** 17:14  
**surplus** 54:4  
**swinging** 17:17  
**sworn** 10:19  
**system** 49:22

---

**T**

---

**table** 35:3,11  
 38:17  
**take** 13:9 14:12  
 21:9 29:1

34:24 35:7  
 37:5 40:17,18  
 41:7 43:19  
 44:4 50:6  
**taken** 54:19  
**takes** 21:6,14  
**talents** 30:5  
**talk** 21:16 23:4  
 47:3 54:20  
**talked** 23:17  
 33:22 52:2  
**talking** 44:3  
 50:4,5 51:16  
**tanks** 52:22  
 54:25  
**task** 30:12 34:8  
 34:8  
**Tawana** 44:23  
**teacher** 29:13  
**teaching** 50:5  
**team** 13:5 22:19  
 28:14 52:14  
**technically**  
 49:12  
**tell** 12:7 35:9  
 36:10,10 59:2  
 59:2,17  
**telling** 59:19  
**terms** 8:6 9:10  
 10:15,22 11:21  
 12:2 21:21  
 34:19 40:18  
 41:3,11 42:6  
 52:6,11,16  
 54:8 56:18,25  
 57:2  
**terrorists** 41:23  
**thank** 3:14 4:3,5  
 4:9,18 5:1,11  
 5:25 6:3 7:3  
 7:16,24 8:2,3  
 8:9,9,9 14:18  
 15:20 17:21  
 18:4,5 19:15  
 19:18,22 22:24  
 24:1,3,13 28:7  
 28:8,17 29:7  
 33:14 37:9  
 38:3,12 39:16  
 39:17 40:9  
 42:12 44:18,20  
 46:17,21 47:24

48:4,14,16,18  
 50:12,15,16,19  
 50:20 51:18,20  
 53:25 55:20  
 56:8,20 58:25  
 59:5,24 60:1,5  
 60:8,11,25  
**thanks** 7:4 37:10  
 42:10  
**Theo** 42:14  
**thing** 32:12 34:9  
 59:22  
**things** 13:11  
 18:10 39:6  
 42:16 43:10  
 45:19 47:22  
 51:8,18 56:24  
**think** 5:10 9:9  
 9:24 11:9  
 16:10 20:14  
 21:19,21,22  
 24:7 33:11  
 41:15 42:4  
 46:7 50:9  
 52:10,15  
**thinking** 49:1  
 51:12 55:3  
**third** 42:3,16  
**thought** 17:16  
 32:10 35:13  
 38:24 39:1  
 43:12  
**thousands** 49:21  
**three** 21:20  
**throw** 49:16  
**Thursday** 1:12  
 3:2 8:22 16:9  
 39:20  
**tickets** 20:20  
 27:24  
**ticking** 46:8  
**time** 3:15,21  
 4:19 7:4 10:10  
 11:25 17:15  
 19:1 21:21,22  
 21:24 27:20  
 38:13 40:5,12  
 42:3 45:2 46:2  
 46:6 50:1  
 52:13 53:3  
 58:13 62:10  
**times** 39:1

**Timothy** 24:18  
**today** 4:4 5:17  
 17:7 36:17,24  
 48:20  
**told** 21:23 23:13  
 36:7 44:14  
 59:11  
**Tom** 40:16  
**tomorrow** 59:15  
**tonight** 3:9,10  
 7:5 9:8 11:17  
 12:9,11 14:7  
 16:1 24:24  
 56:21,23 60:5  
**tonight's** 8:12  
**tool** 30:5  
**top** 21:20  
**total** 15:19  
 20:13  
**Townsend** 26:7  
**toy** 58:6,8  
**tracked** 54:19  
**training** 54:4,7  
**transcription**  
 62:12,13  
**transformational**  
 29:19  
**transition** 10:4  
 47:6,15,16  
**transparency**  
 31:11 32:20  
**treated** 47:21  
**treatment** 51:6  
**trend** 12:12,22  
**tribute** 29:8  
 32:18  
**trouble** 12:7  
**true** 62:12  
**truth** 34:12,25  
 35:9 36:10,11  
 54:1  
**try** 22:6  
**trying** 57:24  
**tuned** 11:13  
**turn** 49:24  
**two** 11:8 20:25  
 22:9 40:11  
 41:22 42:16  
 53:8  
**two-week** 39:23  
**type** 56:22 57:3

**U**

**U-verse** 56:17  
**U.S** 20:12  
**unable** 44:10  
**UNANIMOUSLY**  
 32:15  
**Uncle** 20:10  
**understand** 34:13  
 35:19 54:22  
 55:10  
**understanding**  
 15:1 43:22  
 44:17 45:11,13  
**undertaken** 20:17  
**unfortunately**  
 49:23  
**unhealthy** 49:20  
**Unice** 25:2  
**uniform** 41:6  
**United** 35:19,23  
 35:25 36:5,18  
 52:9  
**units** 20:25  
**University** 29:15  
**unlawful** 34:15  
 36:23  
**unofficial** 9:16  
**unresolved** 45:9  
**up-armored** 53:6  
 54:25  
**upcoming** 47:2  
**update** 17:8  
**USA** 30:9  
**use** 15:13,14  
 32:25 41:19  
 42:4 43:15  
 55:13  
**usually** 21:8,10  
**utilized** 29:2

**V**

**validity** 55:21  
**value** 50:5  
**Vanessa** 22:19  
**Vann** 2:7 3:12,15  
 3:17 4:11,12  
 8:13 9:1 15:25  
 17:23 28:24  
 29:1,6,7 33:14  
 38:7 60:19  
**various** 13:4

**vehicle** 53:6  
 55:3,7,11,15  
**vehicles** 52:21  
 52:22,25 53:1  
 53:8,12,14,17  
 54:18,19 55:4  
**vendor** 44:9,12  
**versus** 60:10  
**Vice-Chair** 3:7  
 11:24 40:14  
**Vice-Chairperson**  
 2:4  
**viewed** 31:8  
**viewing** 59:14  
**Villarreal** 25:9  
 25:12  
**violating** 37:2  
**violation** 34:16  
**violence** 31:25  
 48:22,25 49:15  
**virtually** 31:15  
**visit** 47:20  
**visual** 52:23  
**voice** 45:22  
**vote** 19:1 39:8  
 42:3  
**voted** 10:17  
 11:16  
**voters** 34:17  
 35:4,5  
**voting** 19:3  
**vow** 41:7

**W**

**waiting** 57:8  
**walking** 49:20,22  
**Walton** 22:22  
**want** 3:9 5:2,11  
 5:21 6:6 7:11  
 18:22 22:18  
 24:5,10 27:9  
 27:21 28:10  
 34:20,21 37:8  
 38:20 39:4,12  
 43:23 48:4  
 49:16 50:6,13  
 50:25 56:2,6  
 56:10,20 57:24  
 58:2,9,14,22  
 59:4,8,23 60:5  
 60:8,10  
**wanted** 12:8

15:25 46:19,21  
 50:19,20,22  
 51:6  
**wants** 33:12 50:2  
**war** 53:2 55:3,10  
**warrant** 17:15  
**Warren** 20:3  
**warrior** 29:9  
**wasn't** 36:4  
 38:18  
**watch** 55:5  
**watched** 49:2  
**watching** 44:18  
**way** 10:3 35:10  
 41:18 43:4  
 46:20 47:23  
 55:19 59:25  
**Wayne** 7:17 62:6  
**We'll** 25:1 44:18  
**we're** 10:2 12:13  
 12:14,19 13:8  
 13:9,19,21  
 14:3 22:3,5,11  
 24:19,19,21  
 28:22 36:17,23  
 44:8 45:12  
 48:3,7 49:25  
 53:10 56:1  
 57:20 58:4,14  
 58:23  
**we've** 5:3 13:14  
 14:21 22:1,1  
 50:11  
**Wednesday** 13:13  
**week** 11:1 12:24  
 16:11 20:19  
 33:24 38:17  
 39:5,14 57:11  
 59:3  
**weekly** 3:5 20:20  
**weeks** 13:3  
**weigh-in** 9:10,16  
**welcome** 3:5  
**went** 28:19 36:5  
 49:6  
**west** 20:3  
**Westly** 19:17  
**White** 2:20 4:22  
 4:24 5:5,10  
 9:12 12:4,5  
 14:16,21 15:1  
 15:7,23 16:18

17:9 24:5,13  
 25:4,8,12,15  
 25:18,22 26:5  
 26:10,15,19,22  
 27:2,6,19 44:7  
 44:8 46:9 52:9  
 54:13,16 55:20  
 58:15,24 60:11  
**who've** 35:18  
**Williams** 53:18  
 53:19,20  
**Willie** 2:4 3:7  
 6:9 25:25  
**willing** 23:11  
**Wilson** 40:14,17  
**wish** 58:17  
**woman** 50:2  
**women** 14:8 28:2  
 30:3 49:19  
**wondered** 16:16  
**wonderful** 51:15  
**wondering** 16:12  
**word** 41:20 42:4  
**work** 21:1,17  
 22:24 24:20  
 27:13,15 28:7  
 47:18 50:7  
**worked** 31:23  
 46:23  
**working** 10:5,6  
 16:25 22:12  
 28:2 29:19  
 57:5  
**works** 20:22  
**world** 41:5 58:21  
**wouldn't** 23:15  
**wrap-around** 21:8  
 21:11  
**written** 27:24  
**wrong** 42:5  
**Wyatt** 22:19

**X**

**Xfinity** 20:9

**Y**

**yard** 42:8  
**yeah** 36:22 44:8  
**year** 13:9 15:3  
 35:2 39:22,24  
**years** 15:10  
 26:23 30:22

33:15,17,22  
 43:20 46:23  
 49:5,7  
**young** 18:9 19:13  
 28:19 49:19,19  
 57:9 58:12  
 59:9  
**Young's** 7:19  
**youngsters** 58:7  
**youth** 31:24

**Z**

**zip** 43:17  
**zones** 31:25  
 51:13,25  
**zoning** 18:18

**0**

**1**

**1** 18:8 19:7,12  
**1,000** 18:20  
**1,500** 41:13  
**1,800** 20:18  
**10** 1:12 3:2  
 26:23 42:22  
 56:15  
**10.29** 20:1  
**101** 45:6  
**1033** 54:23  
**10500** 1:14  
**10th** 22:23 26:6  
 26:7  
**11** 5:16,20 11:4  
**11th** 26:12  
**12** 19:8  
**12th** 26:19,24  
 40:1  
**13** 30:21  
**13530** 19:25  
**14** 40:1  
**15** 46:7  
**15635** 18:1  
**16** 13:13  
**17** 18:7 19:12  
 39:20  
**18th** 58:10  
**1902** 28:20  
**1920** 41:14  
**1965** 29:15  
**1971** 26:2  
**1994** 25:6

**1998** 25:13

**2**

**2** 2:7 21:22  
 43:19  
**20** 43:20  
**2003** 30:17  
**2008** 26:6,11,15  
 26:16  
**2010** 20:12  
**2012** 10:18  
**2013** 10:18 30:23  
**2014** 3:2 10:19  
 25:23  
**2015** 1:12 8:23  
 39:20  
**2016** 43:24 44:1  
 44:6,9,14,15  
 46:11  
**24** 22:7  
**24/7/365** 27:15  
**28** 25:6  
**2nd** 4:5,12 5:13  
 19:16,23,24  
 20:5,8,17,21  
 21:20 22:16  
 23:19 24:4,17  
 24:24

**3**

**3** 2:8 8:23 13:13  
 39:20  
**300** 13:1  
**31** 44:15  
**3500** 13:14  
**3rd** 4:9 25:1,5

**4**

**4** 3:7  
**400** 20:20  
**41** 15:19  
**42** 34:15  
**48227** 1:18 20:1  
**4th** 25:9

**5**

**5** 15:17,21  
**5:30** 57:22  
**500** 20:20  
**5th** 13:12,15  
 25:15

**6**

**6** 57:22,23  
**6.2** 21:23  
**6:30** 1:12  
**6:32** 3:3  
**60,000** 20:13  
**62** 40:2  
**6th** 22:22 25:18  
 25:19

**7**

**7** 2:9 4:5 7:23  
 56:15 57:14  
**7:48** 61:3  
**7th** 25:24 26:2  
 46:15

**8**

**8** 15:11  
**80** 20:21  
**8th** 13:22 14:2  
 15:8,12,14

**9**

**9-1-1** 20:19  
**90** 45:1 49:2  
**90-day** 12:24  
**96** 49:7  
**99** 22:10